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2022
295,701,666 100.10
308,004 0.10
295,393,662
100.00
40,950
2022

- 53,683,325

7.71 413,776,639 5.51 295,701,666 100.10

2022

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.0000 10/01/2052

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.5000 09/01/2052

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 04.5000 10/01/2052

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.5000 10/01/2052

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.5000 09/01/2052

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.0000 09/01/2052

GNMA Gi130 TBA 03.0000 09/01/2052

Ivory Coast REGS 06.1250 06/15/2033

CAS 2016-C02 1B 14.6937 09/25/2028

10

ITAU Unibanco/KY P/P 144A 03.8750 04/15/2031

2022

79.72
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2022
2022
2022
7.98 1,106
1,134,757 157,311
2013 8.05 1,116
8.04 1,115
1,335,204 185,099
2014 8.11 1,124
10 7.51 1,041
1,179,159 163,467
2015 7.58 1,051
11 6.64 921
587,539 81,451
(2016 ) 6.72 932
12 6.88 954
561,947 77,903
(2017 ) 6.97 966
13 6.94 962
508,057 70,432
2018 7.03 975
14 6.58 912
467,247 64,774
2019 6.68 926
15 5.90 818
439,560 60,936
2020 5.99 830
16 6.32 876
471,093 65,308
2021 6.42 890
17 5.64 782
340,195 47,161
2022 5.73 794
5.94 823
2021 419,991 58,223
6.04 837
5.80 804
10 399,584 55,394
5.90 818
5.73 794
11 389,030 53,931
5.83 808
5.71 792
12 375,432 52,046
5.81 805
5.73 794
2022 371,494 51,500
5.83 808
5.70 790
366,195 50,766
5.79 803
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5.68 787
355,970 49,348
5.78 801
5.64 782
340,195 47,161
5.73 794
5.59 775
326,850 45,311
5.69 789
5.44 754
304,124 42,161
5.53 767
5.50 762
303,996 42,143
5.60 776
5.44 754
295,394 40,950
5.53 767
0.464 64.32
2012 2013 30 0.416 57.67
0.444 61.55
2013 2014 30 0.396 54.90
10 0.435 60.30
2014 2015 30 0.387 53.65
11 0.408 56.56
2015 2016 30 0.360 49.91
12 0.408 56.56
2016 2017 30 0.360 49.91
13 0.408 56.56
2017 2018 30 0.360 49.91
14 0.404 56.01
2018 2019 30 0.357 49.49
15 0.348 48.24
2019 2020 30 0.312 43.25
16 0.258 35.77
2020 2021 30 0.222 30.78
17 0.240 33.27
2021 2022 30 0.204 28.28
0.020 2.77
2021
0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
10
0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
11
0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
12
0.017 2.36
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0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
0.017 2.36
0.020 2.77
0.017 2.36
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2012 2013 30 10.02 9.40
2013 2014 30 6.54 5.85
10 2014 2015 30 1.19 1.79
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
15 2019 2020 30 5.43 6.02
16 2020 2021 30 11.67 11.02
17 2021 2022 30 7.04 7.65
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2012 35,020 167,200 704,220
35,020 167,200 704,220
2013 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
15,900 94,550 625,570
2013 (15,900) (94,550) (625,570)
2014 30 ’ ’ ’
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014 (1,650) (116,400) (510,820)
2015 30 ’ ’ ’
11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
o017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
S018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
201 6,954,910 307,260 10,035, 420
6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2019 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
15
2019 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
2020 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
16
2020 9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
2021 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
17
2021 1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
2022 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
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201 39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
2013 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
so14 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
11
2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
(7,588,070) (14,399,919) (80,202,786)
2017 30
13
po017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
0 8,861,870 60,047,420
2018 ) (8,861,870) (60,047,420)
2019 30 T T
15
0 5,285,895 54,761,525
2019 ) (5,285,895) (54,761,525)
2020 30 T T
16
0 5,520,480 49,241,045
2020 ) (5,520,480) (49,241,045)
2021 30 B B
17
0 9,556,560 39,684,485
2021 0) (9,556,560) (39,684,485)
2022 30 B T
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OFAC
EU

OFAC EU

OFAC EU

2019 30
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30

4.0

3.0

2.0

1.0

0.0
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2150 12 31
2005 10

30
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2150 12 31
12

90

10
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2021 12 31
180

2021 12 31
180

120

30

30

30
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31
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30

23 103

25 193

UFJ 138.63
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2022 30 2021 30
3,4,8,12 850,436,228 117,895,974 896,806,006 124,324,217
8 299,948,814 41,581,904 84,094,808 11,658,063
6 825,519 114,442
4,8 142,299 19,727
4,8 240,617 33,357
4,050,447 561,513 4,485,873 621,877
3,8 45,766,227 6,344,572 10,568,210 1,465,071
1,200,584,632 166,437,048 996,780,416 138,183,669
3,4,8,12 468,032,203 64,883,304 225,413,366 31,249,055
8,11 385,831,373 53,487,803 296,957,529 41,167,222
6 1,533,148 212,540 1,449,133 200,893
4,8 18,897 2,620
4,8 73,592 10,202
8,9 773,027 107,165 547,090 75,843
8,9 115,066 15,952 179,792 24,925
8 3,895,152 539,985 750,000 103,973
8,9 392,553 54,420 336,790 46,689
860,572,522 119,301,169 525,726,189 72,881,422
1,8 340,012,110 47,135,879 471,054,227 65,302,247
340,194,751 47,161,198 471,093,124 65,307,640

76/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 30 2021 30

3,8 21,185,084 2,936,888 22,663,761 3,141,877

(148,163) (20,540) 112,836 15,642

(47,981,134) (6,651,625) 33,635,526 4,662,893

10 119,854 16,615 5,135 712

(26,824,359) (3,718,661) 56,417,258 7,821,124

9 5,687,426 788,448 6,630,571 919,196

9 151,105 20,948 131,808 18,273

9 81,107 11,244 88,294 12,240

9 374,622 51,934 386,807 53,623

9 82,500 11,437 82,500 11,437

9 88,930 12,328 86,425 11,981

9 106,030 14,699 119,542 16,572
9 (72,533) (10,055)

6,499,187 900,982 7,525,947 1,043,322

(33,323,546) (4,619,643) 48,891,311 6,777,802

7 (14,682, 359) (2,035, 415) (17,187,048) (2,382,640)

(48,005,905) (6,655,059) 31,704,263 4,395,162

3,5 (1,391) (193)

(48,005,905) (6,655,059) 31,702,872 4,394,969

(48,005,905) (6,655,059) 31,702,872 4,394,969
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2021 30

1,8

471,054,227 65,302,247 439,618,795 60,944,354
(48,005,905) (6,655,059) 31,702,872 4,394,969

8,216,002 1,138,984 57,205,297 7,930,370
(56,719,016) (7,862,957) (35,008,019) (4,853,162)
(34,533,198) (4,787,337) (22,464,718) (3,114,284)
(83,036,212)  (11,511,310) (267,440) (37,075)
340,012,110 47,135,879 471,054,227 65,302,247
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2022 30 2021 30
(48,005,905) (6,655,059) 31,702,872 4,394,969
3 (41,316,189) (5,727,663) (40,575, 740) (5.625,015)
3,5 1,391 193
7 14,682,359 2,035,415 17,187,048 2,382,640
20,131,105 2,790,775 17,910,588 2,482,945
148,163 20,540 (112,836) (15,642)
(54,360,467) (7,535,992) 26,113,323 3,620,090
8 (215,854,006)  (29,923,841) 19,638,152 2,722,437
8,11 88,873,844 12,320,581 (72,548,434)  (10,057,389)

4,8 (142,299) (19,727)

4,8 (240,617) (33,357) 251,152 34,817
8,9 (64,726) (8,973) (106,302) (14,737)
4,8 (18,897) (2,620) (61,246) (8,491)
4,8 (73,592) (10,202) 73,592 10,202
8,9 225,937 31,322 30,714 4,258
8 3,145,152 436,012 (7.390,577) (1,024,556)
8,9 55,763 7,730 24,700 3,424
3,4,8,12 46,369,778 6,428,242 31,096,503 4,310,908
3,4,8,12 242,618,837 33,634,249 (20,422,713) (2,831,201)
110,534,707 15,323,426 (23,301,136) (3.230,236)
21,620,510 2,997,251 23,068,526 3,197,990
132,155,217 18,320,678 (232,610) (32,247)
7 (14,682,359) (2,035,415) (17,187,048) (2,382,640)
6 9,041,521 1,253,426 56,382,433 7,816,297
6 (91,168,199) _ (12,638,647) (56,422,311) (7,821,825)
(96,809,037) __ (13,420,637) (17,226,926) (2,388,169)
35,346,180 4,900,041 (17,459,536) (2,420,415)
3,8 10,568,210 1,465,071 27,914,910 3,869,844
(148,163) (20,540) 112,836 15,642
3,8 45,766,227 6,344,572 10,568,210 1,465,071
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2021 30 471,052,864

2022 30

2005 18

13 2005
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2022 30 340,012,110
2021

2005 18

2005
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2022 30 2021 30

2022 30 2021 30

65 241,311
36,494 627,417
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45,729,668 9,699,482

45,766,227 10,568,210

27,838,861 2021 41,616,000
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12
2022 30 2021 30
2022 30 2021 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00

300 10
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2022 2021 2022 2021
30 30 30 30
57,049,680 57,921,525 1,086 1,086
316,352 4,122,319
(11,819,407) (4,994,164)
45,546,625 57,049,680 1,086 1,086
2022 2021 2022 2021
30 30 30 30
49,241,045 54,761,525 24,493,270 18,926,710
1,361,070 9,154,250
(9,556,560) (5,520, 480) (5,880,780) (3,587,690)
39,684,485 49,241,045 19,973,560 24,493,270
2022 30
100 2021 100 2022 30
100
2021 100 2022 30
100 2021 100
14,716,098
0.2817 2021 17,222,140 0.2985

2021

90/259



15

2021

65

9,222,928
0.222
5,513,930

5,459,431
0.258
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0.204 2021 11,673,118
0.24
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92 2021 88

2022 30 2021 30
105,000,000
1,719,518,064 1,094,253,055
105,000,000
1,678,738,447 822,292,544
721 1,553
76,929,048 549,065,404
1,005,534,468 1,549,672,000
4,355,452 42,459,853
364,289,929
35,407,595 38,264,916
64,651,577 127,372,500

* 10

2021 17.78 12.93

10
w* 721 149,786,875
2021 1,553 295,927,747

2022 30 2021 30
17,300,000 158,100,000
42,000,000 96,000,000

1,462,700,000

1,089,200,000

17,300,000 177,100,000
2,300,000 87,700,000
1,377,800,000 859,800,000
1,000 1,000
502,900,000 446,800,000
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1,262,400,000

9,200,000

116,000,000

130,800,000

239,700,000
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1,637,100,000

59,100,000

319,400,000

162,700,000

2021 276,000,000

99

2022

30

0.79

2021

30

0.86
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2022 30 5.40 0.17 5.39
2021 30 5.84 0.04 5.85
2022 30

1,687,908 1,687,908

5,148 5,148

1,938,388 1,117,708 3,056,096

468,248 468,248

3,432 3,432

10,237 10,237

7,046,698 9,017,185 16,063,883

445,854 445,854

4,682 4,682

427,023 427,023

81,634 81,634

16,591 16,591

255,947 255,947

22,961 22,961

8,985,086 13,564,558 22,549,644
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914,542 914,542
4,233,667 4,233,667
442 442
5,281 5,281
26,479 26,479
7,857,333 7,857,333
2,033,176 2,033,176
3,755 3,755
1,979 1,979
20,689 20,689
12,309 12,309
5,319 5,319
721,709 721,709
15,836,680 15,836,680
6 6
43 43
16 16
65 65

2021 30
691,687 691,687
1,956,512 1,956,512
524,902 524,902
3,529,486 8,162,706 11,692,192
50,312 50,312
868,043 868,043
29,933 29,933
288,014 288,014
73,723 73,723
62,559 62,559
3,529,486 12,708,391 16,237,877
380,044 380,044
1,055,696 1,055,696

404,316 404,316

95/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12,956,849 12,956,849
1,289,435 1,289,435
648,578 648,578
31,544 31,544
147,197 147,197
76,645 76,645
16,990,304 16,990, 304
504 504

6 6

47 47

240,754 240,754

241,311 241,311

96/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
30 221
2022 30
45,729,668 36,559 45,766,227
299,948,814 299,948,814
142,299 142,299
240,617 240,617
4,050,447 4,050,447
50,198,617 59,537,897 738,558,544 2,141,170 850,436,228

96,311,201 59,537,897 738,558,544 306,176,990 1,200,584,632

385,831,373 385,831,373

1,533,148 1,533,148

140,456 752,028 3,002,668 3,895,152
773,027 773,027

115,066 115,066

392,553 392,553

20,373,294 23,880,243 421,337,238 2,441,428 468,032,203
20,513,750 24,632,271 424,339,906 391,086,595 860,572,522
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2021 30

9,699,482 868,728 10,568,210
84,094,808 84,094,808
825,519 825,519
4,485,873 4,485,873
118,224,192 80,211,250 696,116,156 2,254,187 896,805,785
127,923,674 80,211,250 696,116,156 92,529,115 996,780,195
296,957,529 296,957,529
1,449,133 1,449,133
18,897 18,897
73,592 73,592
750,000 750,000
547,090 547,090
179,792 179,792
336,790 336,790
4,117,657 14,203,351 203,874,512 3,217,846 225,413,366
4,210,146 14,203,351 204,624,512 302,688,180 525,726,189

2022 30 2021 30
20,216 23,954
21,164,868 22,639,807
21,185,084 22,663,761

2022 30 2021 30
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2021 30 221

2022 30

243,838,686 148,141,143 808,604,803 1,200,584,632

187,500,581 198,330,792 385,831,373
1,533,148 1,533,148
3,895,152 3,895,152

773,027 773,027
115,066 115,066
392,553 392,553

4,457,427 8,241,624 455,333,152 468,032,203

194,771,802 206,572,416 459,228,304 860,572,522
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2021 30

166,387,682 38,464,576 791,927,937 996,780,195

193,274,492 103,683,037 296,957,529
1,449,133 1,449,133
18,897 18,897
73,592 73,592
750,000 750,000

547,090 547,090
179,792 179,792
336,790 336,790

1,468,312 3,781,955 220,163,099 225,413,366

197,348,098 107,464,992 220,913,099 525,726,189

27,838,861
2021 41,616,000
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2022 2021
30 30
50.53 66.12
0.79 0.72
1.34 1.82
7.84 8.28
16.30 16.76
11.79 11.84
6.88 6.20
15.83 17.34
8.00 8.64
(19.30) (37.72)
100.00 100.00

2022 30 2021 30
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24,530,796 2021 29,325,035
24,118,878 2021 30,064,000
10
2022 30
56.70 482,130,931 2021
41.07 362,136,779

2022 30 2021 30
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772,609,206 820,216,783
27,293,000 40,800,000
. 48,426,133 31,397,127
45,766,227 10,568,210
299,948,814 84,094,808
825,519
4,050,447 4,485,873
142,299
240,617
12
2022 30 2021 30
12
2021 2022 28

2021

103/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

104/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

105/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 30

1,220,940 1,220,940
2,160,000 1,735,152 3,895,152
243,064 243,064
1,069,675 1,069,675
2,391,549 2,391,549
1,495,172 1,495,172
821,315 821,315
214,020 214,020
2,132,012 2,132,012
5,140,262 5,140,262
581,150 581,150
359,480 359,480
4,778,995 4,778,995
3,025,839 3,025,839
5,858,662 5,858,662
12,999,060 12,999,060
4,205,999 4,205,999
15,372,737 15,372,737
7,287,681 7,287,681
4,557,357 4,557,357
2,043,115 2,043,115
657,680 657,680
1,072,442 1,072,442
31,481,483 31,481,483
84,542,511 84,542,511
34,353,329 34,353,329
42,786,050 42,786,050
8,510,569 8,510,569
425,971 425,971
511,616 511,616
215,000 215,000

1,585,470 1,585,470
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536,072 536,072
317,188 317,188
82,601 82,601
1,117,330 1,117,330
717,427 717,427
357,211 357,211
35,540,533 35,540,533
483,909,056 483,909,056
2,160,000 806,252,775 808,412,775
2,141,170 2,141,170
29,927,347 29,927,347
9,954,936 9,954,936
42,023,453 42,023,453
850,436,228

45,729,668 45,729,668
31,748,282 31,748,282
2,915,323 2,915,323
2,441,428 2,441,428
33,472,499 33,472,499
251,036 251,036
17,879,539 17,879,539
54,044,502 54,044,502
396,837,078 396,837,078
17,150,623 17,150,623
468,032,203

22,317,934 22,317,934
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2021

30

221 221
5,636,722 5,636,722
750,000 750,000
326,564 326,564
1,857,270 1,857,270
6,514,895 6,514,895
1,984,535 1,984,535
1,541,317 1,541,317
1,468,148 1,468,148
5,617,674 5,617,674
11,979,697 11,979,697
1,796,270 1,796,270
739,409 739,409
4,916,373 4,916,373
6,363,299 6,363,299
6,781,377 6,781,377
16,645,986 16,645,986
4,932,325 4,932,325
14,358,357 14,358,357
10,495,077 10,495,077
6,219,054 6,219,054
4,138,691 4,138,691
717,182 717,182
1,944,452 1,944,452
60,025,456 60,025,456
101,545,441 101,545,441
30,562,736 30,562,736
56,120,290 56,120,290
702,600 702,600
9,676,476 9,676,476
1,473,896 1,473,896
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1,700,508 1,700,508
237,102 237,102
2,517,750 2,517,750
851,647 851,647
83,827 83,827
1,863,469 1,863,469
373,523 373,523
365,873 365,873
112,927,491 112,927,491
372,643,100 372,643,100
750,000 870,646,080 871,396,080
2,254,187 2,254,187
10,312,092 10,312,092
108,227 108,227
12,735,420 12,735,420
25,409,926 25,409,926
896,806,006

9,699,482 9,699,482
20,947,559 20,947,559
6,018,143 6,018,143
199,898 199,898
3,217,846 3,217,846
9,048,446 9,048,446
68,478 68,478
36,916,634 36,916,634
49,251,404 49,251,404
161,037,034 161,037,034
442,485 442,485
14,682,443 14,682,443

225,413,366
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17,747,696 17,747,696
14,258,049 14,258,049
182,978 182,978

2022 30 2021 30
45,729,668 9,699,482
760,466,521 747,339,292
221
27,293,000 40,800,000

2021

8,247,533 72,127,491
50,534,022 35,789,002
3,895,152 750,000
896,165,896 906,505,488

2022 30 2021 30
(76,391,025) 23,821,655
28,261,728 9,926,707
(48,129,297) 33,748,362
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2.00 0.60

1.60

2021 4,307,212

1.80
2022 30

22,500

0.02 60,000

112/259

1.00

1.20
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3,657,950

72,533

15,000
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0.10

0.10

67,500
0.0030

5,000

2022 30 2021 30

300,000
75,000

113/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
119,854 2021
5,135
11
2017 27 LIBOR FCA LIBOR
2021 LIBOR ICE
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023 30
2021 LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19

12

114/259



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2022 30
§ 8,171,967
*#
*#
*#
13,404 18,952 124,109
7,976,338 7,849,045
> f 18,054
*x 27,293,000
8,007,796 18,952 8,171,967 27,293,000 7,973,154
§ 7,931,350
*#
*# 526,442
*#
# 1,438 104,096 5,281
9,650,726 12,236,526
# 799,438 3,611,405
10,978,044 104,096 7,931,350 15,853,212
(2,970,248) (85,144) 240,617 27,293,000 (7,880,058)
#H T (2,970,248) 27,293,000 (7,677,498)
(85,144) 240,617 (202,560)
TBA folel
TBA **
27,838,861
TBA i (3,019,481) (293,888) (7,677,498)
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Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,

Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,380,069 1,617,276 1,077,223
21,804 23,549
624,623 2,096,341
x4 656,256
**k
1,380,069 1,617,276 624,623 3,851,624 23,549
§
*#
*# 4,325,671 3,917,623 2,954,218
*#
# 11,012 196,546
419,757 2,863,839
# 544,395
4,325,671 3,928,635 419,757 6,558,998
(2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,707,374) 23,549
#H T (2,945,602) (2,311,359) 204,866 (2,675,908)
(31,466) 23,549
TBA *x
TBA ** 280,000
TBA il (3,013,198) (2,336,510) (2,675,908)
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2022 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,967,404 244,782 1,042,168
142,299
44,973 263,925 467,356
# 2,959,257 468,923
il 1,767,537 2,303,801 1,938,388
**k
4,771,767 2,109,703 244,782 4,078,817 2,405,744
§
*# 251,036
*# 1,677,342 426,232 1,425,997
*#
# 4,455 8,070 13,300
# 3,365,012 712,040
# 4,272,845 3,228,280 3,387,403
7,642,312 1,677,342 426,232 5,625,423 3,400,703
(2,870,545) 432,361 (181,450) (1,546,606) (994,959)
#H T (2,790,999) 300,000 (181,450) (1,375,667) (861,714)
(79,546) 132,361 (170,939) (133,245)
TBA *x
TBA ** 300,000
TBA il (2,790,999) (349,856) (235,929) (1,375,667) (861,714)
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UBS AG Wells Fargo

WestPac

Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.

2022 30
§ 8,171,967
* ¢

* ¢
* 4 7,328,922
142,299
967,473 116,121 38,055 41,449 2,141,170
1,232,686 4,566,367 2,153,767 29,927,347
o 1,826,533 8,510,569
o 27,293,000
967,473 1,348,807 6,430,955 2,153,767 41,449 83,515,274
§ 7,931,350
* ¢ 251,036
* ¢ 15,253,525

* ¢
# 193,217 562,998 1,340,409 606 2,441,428
461,881 2,518,846 1,243,872 33,472,499
# 361,379 945,478 17,150,623
193,217 1,386,258 4,804,733 1,243,872 606 76,500,461
774,256 (37,451) 1,626,222 909,895 40,843 7,014,813

## 1 774,256 (37,451) 1,500,000 909,895
126,222 40,843

TBA *x 892,484 842,668 1,735,152
TBA o 1,500,000 80,000 2,160,000
27,838,861
TBA o (131,974) (24,762,622)
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2021 30
§ 291,886
*# 49,378 8,687
§ 784,584
*#
*#
150,048 7,174 81,201
3,536,653 137,086 1,009,711
**H 486,740 376,036 83,742
*x #
*x 40,800,000
4,173,441 569,674 1,076,470 40,800,000 1,183,341
§ 474,071
* 4 3,454 8,602
§ 675,991
*# 656,198
*#
124,941 245,868 185,812
3,187,418 107,916 857,397
# 577,954 745,644 1,110,223
#
4,549,965 1,108,030 1,150,062 2,153,432
(376,524) (538,356) (73,592) 40,800,000 (970,091)
et (254,000) (514,000) 40,800,000 (970,091)
et
(122,524) (24,356) (73,592)
TBA folel
TBA *x
41,616,000
TBA i (254,000) (514,000) (1,052,000)
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Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,

Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2021 30
§
* H# 7,114 23,194
§
*#
* # 1,246,426 2,466,955 902,645
15,498 526,878 106,480
235,135
kol 2,215,333
*x #
Kk
1,246,426 2,489,567 3,903,185 106,480
§
* # 16,723 389 17,435
§
*# 6,706,019 5,554,558 4,863,573
* #
66,543 304,130 196,194
280,373
# 1,598,078
#
6,706,019 5,637,824 389 7,063,589 196,194
(5,459,593) (3,148,257) (389) (3,160,404) (3,905,817)
#t (5,422,000) (3,148,257) (3,160,404) (3,905,817)
#t
(37,593) (389)
TBA *x
TBA xx
TBA il (5,422,000) (3,272,000) (3,258,000) (110,000)
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2021 30
§
* H# 4,510 15,344
§
*#
* # 2,125,819 661,272 1,005,339
306
98,286 180,170 10,036
1,786,782 413,502
**H# 1,727,900 4,042,713
** 702,600
Kk
4,320,078 2,141,469 661,272 5,641,724 10,036
§
* # 9,704 2,038 10,133
§
*# 7,183,559 1,117,683 6,508,080
* #
19,203
192,115 323,942 245,780
2,538,771 303,235
# 5,042,820 4,152,411
# 442,485
8,225,895 7,204,800 1,117,683 11,297,801 245,780
(3,905,817) (5,063,331) (456,411) (5,656,077) (235,744)
#t (3,905,817) (5,063,331) (386,000) (5,656,077) (235,744)
#t
(70,411)
TBA *x
TBA xx
TBA il (4,114,000) (5,072,000) (386,000) (5,833,000) (282,000)
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State Street Bank Toronto- UBS AG Wells Fargo WestPac
and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.
2021 30
§ 291,886
*# 108,227
§ 784,584
*#
*# 8,408,456
306
750,530 96,226 150,622 81,038 2,254,187
# 452,915 2,058,553 681,755 10,312,092
**H 295,360 448,652 9,676,476
x4 702,600
"ok 40,800,000
750,530 844,501 2,657,827 681,755 81,038 73,338,814
§ 474,071
* # 68,478
§ 675,991
*# 32,589,670
*#
19,203
624,990 210,959 358,187 138,385 3,217,846
# 239,751 1,220,907 312,678 9,048,446
# 619,668 835,645 14,682,443
# 442,485
624,990 1,070,378 2,414,739 312,678 138,385 61,218,633
125,540 (225,877) 243,088 369,077 (57,347) 12,120,181
et (111,000) (225,877) (57,347)
et 243,088 369,077
236,540
TBA folel
TBA i 350,000 400,000 750,000
41,616,000
TBA i (111,000) (253,000) (131,000) (30,064,000)
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Combined statements of financial position

End of gach reporting period
April 30

ASSETS
CurrentAssets Hotes 2022 2021
Finimcis a5sets a1 Birvalue through profit or loss ® i438.12 SRR 436208 SRIE.206,006
Sales of imestments awailing settlement ] 190,548 814 B4 (54 BOR
Sulbeicr|pUOnS o uners sl nng Setllament ] - BIEE1%
Riespev il dor wanation margin on fiiures contraces 4.8 142,799 -
Recaivable lod vanaton margn oncentrally deared swap contracis 4.8 M0E1T -
Iriker st and afer recenables 4050447 4485873
Casinand cash equivalents 1B 45 THE, 23T 10568210
Total Assets 1,200, 584,512 996,780 416
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial [rabddbies at far value through profit or loss * 34,812 458,032,203 135,413,366
Purchases of Iraesirments dwa ing setlement B.11 385,831,373 196 AET.ERS
Recempuons of units.swating setdement B 1,533,143 1443133
Payable forvariasonmangin on futures contracts 48 - 18897
Payable for variaBonmangn on centrally clearad swiap contracts 4.8 - Tasa2
Payabli for anagement fees B3 TTR0ET 547,050
Payable for custody and administrative fess E 9 115,066 19,142
Collateral on certainm dervative contracts, at value B 3855, 152 TEO,000
Qriher accrued expenies B3 393553 3IGTE0
Total Liabilities {exduding net assets attributableto holders
of redeemable units) #60,572,512 525,716,189
Met Assets sttribut able to holders of redeemable units at bid/ask prices 1B £340,012,110 54T1,054 227
Met Assets attribut able to holders of redeemable units o ftha:
Putram Diviers Sisd income Trust{Cayman 530154751 SATL093. 124

* SeeMote 2H()

The accompanying notes are an infegral partofthese financial statements

Putnarm Diversified Inoeme Trust Fumnds Cayman) 8

125/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

Forthe years ended
April 20
OPERATING INCOMEFLOSS) Hotes 2022 021
Interest from financial assets and fnanaal lapdites at fairvale throughpeoft or loss 1B 20,185,084 422 563,761
Hetrealized and changsin unrsalized gainloss) of assets and labdit e inforeign currendes {148,163 112,836
Netrealized and change in unrsalized gaind(loss) on financial assets and Snancial llabilities at far
value through profit or boss (47,980,134 33,635,526
et Ingrease rim paymrents by aflibates 10 119,854 5135
Total operating incormna/(loss) {26,524, 359) 56 AL7,258
OPERATINGEXPENSES
Management faes 9 EEATAIE 6,630,571
Cusnody fiss 9 151,108 131,808
Admirastrative fees 9 81107 BE 254
Transfer agent fees 9 IT4p2 36, BOT
Trustes feas ] 2500 82500
Aupit fees ) #0530 4,425
Other expenses 9 106030 119 542
Rernbursal from Manager ] {72539 -
Total operating expenses 5459187 7,525,547
Operating profit/{loss) (33,313, 546) 48 891,311
Finance Costs
Distnbunond 1o holders of rédeemableunits T (E4ERZ 359 (1T 187.045)
Profit/{Loss) after distributions and before tax (48,005 905) 11,704,263
Withholding taces 1.5 - {1390
Profit/iL ossh atter distributions and tax (48,005,905 34,700,872
Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders ofred semablaunits
from operations (548,005 905) 531,700,872
The accompanying notes are an infegral partofthese financial statements
Putnam Diversified Incoms Trust Funds Cayman) 9
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

For the years ended
April 30
Motes 1022 2021

Mt Assets attribut able to holders of redeemable units at the beginning of year S4TL,054 22T 5439 618,795
Increase/(Decreass) in nat assets attributableto holders ofred semableunits
from oparations (48,005, 905) 31,701,672
REDEEMABLE UNIT TRAMSACTIONS
Procesds o units Baisd

Class ) B = =

Clarks M & 216 00 57,005,197
valueod urits redesmed

Class ) & (56,719,008 (FE002.01%)

Class M [ {34,533, 196) (22464,T 15)
Imeraasel(Dacraass) in net assets rasulting from red semalble unit transactions {23,038 212} (26T 440
Met Assets attribut able to holders of redeemable units at the end of year I £340,012,110 2471 054, 13T

The accompanying notes are an infegral partofthese financial statements

Putnarm Diversified Inoeme Trust Fumnds Cayman) 10

127/259



Combined statements of cash flows

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
ncreasefDeoeasd innet assets attnbutable tohaolders of redeem ableunits fom operations

Adjustment (o recondle operating proftfloss) for the Anal pefiod o net cash generated fromy
(usied in) operating acthatbies

Interest from financia asseds and financial llabdlities at fair vaiue through peofit or loss
Withhelding taes

Dastributions 1o the holders ofredeemable units

Mt amortizaton of premiums

Exchange gansflosses) on cash and dshequivalants

Wt {incrirsd/decieasein sales ofinvetments swaliing settement
Netincreasefdecrease) in purchases of investments awabing settlement
Wetinoreasd/derreasesn recenvable for vasianon margn on ilres confracts
Net{inreasdydacreasein recanvable for varaion margnon centrally clesed Swapr contracts
Netincreasefdecrease) in payable for custody and administrative fees
Netincraaseddecaase) in payable Iof van ot on manginon Aatures cortracts
Netincreasefdecrease)in payatde for vanation marginon cenirally ceared swap coniracts
Hetincreasefdecraasd in payable lor management lees

Netincreaseddecraase) in collater al on certaindenvative confracts, atvalse
Netincreaseddecrease) in payabie ior other acoued expenses

het{increasedecreasein Inandal assets at fairvalue through profitor loss
Netincreazefdecreasalin fnancia |abites at fair value through profit or loss

Cash Aows genarated from/{used ind operating activitias

nferestrecehed

Mt cach generated fromijused in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
DEwburons paid 10 the holders of redeemabledni ts
Proceeds fitm redesmableunits

Redempionsof redeemableunits

Met cash generated fromi{used in) financing activities
Mat incraace/(decreasa) in cash and cash aquivalent s
Cash and cazh equivalents at beginning of year
Exchange|gainsidosses oncash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent s at end of year

EDINETOOOO
O0O0000000000000000000000000(E15262)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

Forthe years endad
April 30

Hotes 2023 2021
(548 005, 305) £3L702,872
3 [#1,316,185) #0,575,740)
1.5 - i
7 14,652,359 17187048
20130105 17910 528
4B 163 {112,536)
(54, 26046T) 26,113,323
] (215852, 008) 19638152
8,11 BEATI R4 {T2.548424)
4.8 {142.2%3) -
4.8 (20517 51152
8.9 {54, 726) {106,303
4.8 (18,857) {61 248)
4.8 (73,553 73592
B9 135537 20,714
g 3,145.152 {7.290577)
X ] 55,763 700
348,12 46,369,778 3096503
3.4,8,12 147518837 (20422.713)
110,534,707 (23,200,136
2180510 13,068 506
122,155,217 (2326104
1 {14,683 359) (17,187, 042)
é 5041521 56, 300433
L] (90,168, 155) (56,422,310
(96,809,037} {17,226, 926}
45 346,180 {17,453 536}
1.8 10,568,210 914910
{148,163) 112,836
1.8 545,768,227 510,568 210

Thie accompanying notes are an integral partof these financial statements.
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Notes to combined financial statements4/20/22

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Motes to combined financial statements, mferencas to “State Streot”, i any, represant State Streat Bank and Trust Company
and references o “OTC, i any, represent over-the-counter Referances to “funds’ netassets” are based on netassetsof $5340,012 110 at April 30,
P00 547 1,054 227 at April 30, 2021, Unless otherwise noted, the reparting period” reprasents the penad from May L, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund (the “Master Fund®) & a senes trustof the Putnam Offshore Master Senies Trust (the
"Magter Trust™), pursuant o 3 Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2008 and a Master First Supplamental Trust Deed dated August 1§, 2008
betwaen FirstCarib bean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (PAC Putnam
Diversified Incoma Trust (Cayman) {the “Feadar Fund®} 15 a series trustof the Putnam Offshore Feeder Series Trust (the “Feoder Trust”), pursuant
tera Faeder Base Trust Dead dated July L3, 2005 (as amended) and a Feader Supplermental Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 (s ameanded) babweaan
MaphaskSs Limibed and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC, Tha Master and Feedor Trusts are registersd undar the Mutual Funds Act (As Revised)
of the Cayman lslands,

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as a master/feadar fund structure coflectely the “funds”) (gach indnidually & *fund™) whereby
substantially 21l of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are imvested in units of the Master Fund. These combined financial statements are in respect
ofthe funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Fesdar Fund.

Separate books and records 2re maintained for each fund in order to detarming the net asset value for the Feeder Fund. The Feeder Fund has the
same inherant risks as the Master Fund,

The manager of the funds 15 The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the *Manager™), 2 limited liability company organized under the laws of the State
of Delaware, U.5. A State Streat (the “Custodian™} is the custodian of the funds

The investmeant objective of the funds is to séekas high a level of current Income a5 the Manager believes 15 consstent with prasendation of
capital The Managerwill seek to achieve the funds' objectae by iInvesting mainly in bonds that are securitized debt mstruments and other
obligabionsof companies and governments workdwide, are either investment-grade or below investment-grade (high yield bonds), and have
Intermediate to lang-term matufities fhree yaars of onger).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financialstatements have been prapared in complizncewith intemational Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRE") as published
by the International Accounting Standards Board (11A587). The principal accounting pelicies have been ap plied consistently by the funds for all
perods presanted, unless otherwise stated. Prior pariad amounts may have been reclacsifiad toconfarm o the currant pernod presentation,

Current period and priosyear combaned financial statements of the funds are présented on acombined basks a8 management considers that
the Master Fundand the Feeder Fund represent one reporting entity given the manner inwhich the enbties are managed, References to the
financial staterments hareatter are to be considersd on a combined base Intragronp balances and transactions, including INComs, expenses and
dmidends, are eliminated in full

The Manager makes estimates and assumphions concerning the future that may affect the reported amounts of assets and abdites. Estimates
are continually evaluated and based on historical expenence and other fectars, including expactations of future events that ar believed to be
regsonable undar the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and differences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The falkowing & a summany of the sgnificant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the inancial statements,

The financial statements have breen prepared on a histarical cost basis, as maedified by the revaluation of financlal assets and liabilites clas-
sified at fair value through prafitor loss. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make esti-
rmates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statemants and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

{a} Financial instruments

{i} Classification

The Master Fund classifies its mvestments basad on both the Master Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets kb managed and performance is evaly-
ated on a fairvalue basts. The Master Fund i prmarily focused on fairvalue information and uses that Information to-assess the assets’
perormance and o make decisions. The Master Fund has not taken the option to irmevocably de sign ate any equity securities as fairvalue
through other comprehensive income The contractual cash fiows of the Master Fund's dabt secunties are solely principal and interest,
hicwrewet, these secunties ane not held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows. The collection of contractual cash flows s only
incicental o achieving the Mastor Fund's business modeal's objactive Consequently, all investments ane measured at fairvalue through
profit of loss. Dermative contracts that kave a negative fairvalue are presented as liabiities at fair vabue through profitor loss. As such, in

Putnarm Diversified Inoeme Trust Fumds Cayman) 12
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socordance with IFRS 3, the Master Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio 25 financeal assets orliabilities at fair valee through profit
or loss

{ii} Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date anwhich the Master Fund comanits to purchass or sl the
investment. Investments are derecognizedwhen the rights to receve cash flows from the investments have expired 2nd the Master Fund
has transferned substantially all risks and reswards of cwnership, Securites purchased of sold on 2 delayed delvery basis may be settled at
& future date beyond customary settiemant time; interest income & accrued based on the terms of the securities. Losses may anse due o
changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under the contract.

Purchases and sales of ivestments awalting settiement rep resent payables for securites purchased and recetvables for secunties sold
that hawe bean contracted for but not yet settled or dalivered on the statement of financ sl postion date respectivaly. The due fram
brokers balance, f any, 15 held for collection, These amounts aré recognised initizlly at fa irvalue and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Ateach reposting date, the Mastor Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amaounts due from broker at an amount equal to the
[Ifetime expectad credit losses ifthe credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk
has not increased significanthy since initsal recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the toss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected creditlosses. Significant financial dificulties of the broker, probability that the brokerwill enter bankruptoy or financial reorgani-
sation, and default in payrents are all considerad indicators that 3 loss allowa noe may be reguned, If the credit rsk incraates to the paint
that it is considered to be cradit impaired, intrest income will ke caloulated based an the gross carmying amount adjusted for the loss
alleweance. Askpnificant increase in cradit sk is defined by managoment 42 any contractival payment which & mone than 30 days pastdus.
Any contractual paymentwhich i mose than 90 days past due & considered credit impaired.

{iii} Measurement

Financial assets and Financial iabilities at fairvalue thraugh prafit oF loss ae initially recognized at fairvalue Transaction costs ane
recondedin the Statements of comprehensive income (Joss) as part of the net realized and change in unrealized gainfloss) on financial
assets and financial labilities at fair valie through profit of loss. Subsequent 1 initial recagnition, 31l financia assets at fair vatise through
profit or loss are measured at fairvalue. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fairvalue of the ‘Financial Assets or Financial
Lizbilibies at fair valse through profitor loss' category are presanted in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the pered in
wehich they arme.

Investments for which market quatations ane readity avallable arevalued at the Lt raported eales price on their principal exchangs, of
official closing price for certain markats, and are classified as Level 1 sacunities under |FRS 7 Forr Yoty Megsurements and Dusciosures
(FRSTY I no sales afe reported, a5 in the case of same securities that are traded OTC, asecurity e valued atits st reportad bid prics and
15 generally cateporied as aLevel 2 secunty

Market guotations are not considered (o be readily available for certain debt obligations (ncluding short-term Investmentswith remaining
miatumities of 60 days or less) and other imvestments; such investments are vabised on the basis of valuabionsfurnshed by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager, Such services or dealers datermine valuations for normal
institutional-sze trading units.of such securities using mathods based on markat transactions for comparable securities and various rela-
tiomships, generally recogn zed by institutional traders, babwean securities fahich consider such factors as sacurty prices, ylelds, matur-
ities and ratings) These securities will generally be categorzed as Level 2 Certain securnities may bevalued on the basis of a price provided
by asengle source. Securities quoted i foresgn currencies, If any, are translated into LU, [roilars at the current exchangea rate.

The quated market pricesused for financial assets held by the Master Fund are the cufrent bid price; the appropriate quated market prica
used for the financial Babilities s the curnent asking price, however quoted market prices for both financial assets and financial liabilites
held may fall within the bidlask spread

Totheextenta pricing sarvice ordealer is unable to value a security or provedes a valuation that the Manager does not believe atcu-
rataly reflacts the secunty’s fair valee, the sacunty will be valeed at fasrvalue by the Manager in accerdancewith policies and peocedures
approved by the Manager, Certain investmeants, including certain restricted andilliquid securibes and dervatives, are alkovalued at fair
value faliowing procedurss approved by the Manager Thesevaluations consider such factors a8 significant markat or specific security
events such as mterest rate or credit quality changes, vanous relationships with other securitles, discount rates, LS, Treasury, U.S. swap
and credit yields, index levels, conveity exposines, recovery rates, sabes and other multiples and resale restrctions. These securities an
classified as Level 2 or a4 Level 3 depending on the prionty of the significant inpruts.

Insastments in coflectiva or other inwastment funds anevalued with reference o their respective net assetvalue per unit on the relevant
valuation date.

For the years ended April 30, 2022 and April 30, 2021, no securities or dervatives wers fair valued by the Manager.

{b) Off-zetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilites are offset and the net amount 15 reparted in the Statements of financial position when there is a legally enforceatls
right to off-set the recogn ized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneausty.
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{e) Imcome fram financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest is recognsed on a time-proparticnate basis wsing the effective interest method. Interest income includes intarest from cash and cash
equivalents, Interest from financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss includes interest from debt secunties. Income received from collective
orother investmant funds is recosded on the ax-date and retain the character of income as earned by the underlying investment All pramiums,
dcounts ane amortizedfaccreted on a yield-to-maturnty basis. The Master Fund earned certain feesin connectionwith its sentor loan purchasing
activities. These feas ans treated as market discount and are amortized inko income in the Statements of comprehensive income (lass)

{d) Distribution palicy

Distributions to the unitholders from operating profitfiloss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholdaes of the Feeder Fund, subject to the
approval of the Manager Income distributions, If any, will be mada monthly, Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fundan recognizedasa
finance cost in the Statemsants of comprehansive income (oas). Detributions from capital gains, iFamy, are recorded on the ed-dvidend date and
paid at least annually

{e} Cash and cash equivalents

Cath comprises current depositswith banks, including forésgn curencies. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liguid investmants that are
readily convertibbe to known amaounts of cash, are subject to an malignificant risk of changes in valus, and are held for the purpose of meating
short-term cash needs rather than for investments or other purpeses. Bank overdrafts, (f any, areshown as payabla to custodian in the
Statements of financial pasitien,

Aprilig
€ash and cash equivalents 1022 1021
Foresgn cash 465 5241,311
LD cash 36454 EITHT
Cash equivalents 45,729 668 9EI9 422
Total cash and cash equivalents 545,786 227 510,562,210

{f) Repurchase agreaments

The Master Fund, through its custodian, recanes delivery of the undertying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase & required to
be in an amount at least equal to the resale price, including acorved interest Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which totaled
SI37,838 g6l (2021 541 616 0000 at the end of the reporting periad, is keld at the counterparty's custodian in a segregated account for the banedit
ofthe Master Fund and the counterparty. The Manager is responsible for determining that the value of thess underlying secunties 15 at all times at
leastequal to the rsale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankru picy by the other party to the agree mant, retention of
the collateral may be subject to legal proceedings,

{g) Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in stripped securities which rapresent a particapation in securities that may be structurad in classes with mghts o
recaive differant portions of the interest and principal Interest-only securibes receive all of the interest and principal-only securibias receie all of
the principal. if the interest-only securities experiance greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may fail to recoup fully
ks initial inveskbment in these secunibies. Conversaly, principal-only securities increase In value f prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decling if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair vabue of these securities & highly sensitive to changes in inferest rates.

{h) Fareign currency translation

{i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained i U5, Dollars, the curmncy inwhich they recene subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of thair redeemabla units. The Manager considers the LLS. dollarthe currency that most faithiully
reprasents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The LS. dollar & the currency inwhich the funds
mrizasure their performance and report their results. This determination alse considers the compatitive emvironments inwhich the funds
are compared to other investment products. The financal statements are presentedin LS. dollars.

{ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions ate translated into the functional curmency using the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the trans-
actions. The costof each securiby isdatermened using historical exchange rates. Income, expensas and withholding taves ate ranslated
at prevailingexchange rateswhen earned or incurred. The Master Fund does not isalate that portion of realred or unrealzed gains or
losses resulting from changes in the foreign exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arsing from changes In the market prices
ofthe securites. Foresgn exchange gains and kosses ansing from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses rlating to cash and
cashequavalents are presanted in tha Statemeants of comprahansive moome (l0ss) as Met realized and change in unrealzed gain/(loss) of
atsots and labilitss in foreign currencies. Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-rmonetary financial assets and
liablitses such s equities at fair valse through profit and loss are recognized in the Statemants.of comprahensive income (loss) as Met
realized and change in unrealzed gainf{loss) on financial assets and financial labdities at fairvalue theough profit of loss. Investmeants in
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forelgn seciribies nvohe certain risks, incliding those related to sconomic instability, unfavorable polibcal developments, andcurrency
fluctuatsans, not presentwith domestic investmsants.

{i} TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter inta TEA (to be announced) commitments 10 purchase secunties fior a fed unit price at a future date beyond
customany settiement time. Althaugh the unit price and par amount have been astablehed, the actual securties hiave not been spacified.
Howiaver, it 5 anticipated that the amount of the commitments will not significantty differ from the principal amount. The Master Fund holds, and
miaintains until settlement date, cash or high-grade debt cbligations in an amount sufficient i meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the fonwand sake of other securities 1t owns. Income-on the securities will not ba sarned watil settlement date.

The Master Fund may also enter into TBA sale commitments to-hodge its portfclio positions, to soll mortgage. backed secuntios it owns under
dalayed delivery arrangements of to take ashort powtion in mortgage-backed sacunties. Proceads of TBA sale commitmants are not recenved
until the contractual settiement date. Duning the time 2 TBAsale commitment is outstanding, either equavalent deliverable sacunities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commatment del werable on or bafora the sale commitment date are held as “cover™ for the transaction, orother bguid assets in
an amount aqual to the notional vales of the TEA sale commitment are segrepated, Ifthe TRA sale commitment & clossd through the acquisiton
ofan offsatting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realees a gain of loss. If the Master Fund deliers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain of a loss from the sals of the sacurities based upon the unit price established at the date the comamstinent was
entered into.

TBAcommitrments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securibes themsehes, and imvoive a riskof
loss due to changas in the value of the security prior to the settlement date as well 23 the risk that the counterparty to the transacton will not
perfarmits oblgations Countarparty risk is mitigated by having a master sgreemant betweoen the Master Fund and the countarparty.

Unsettied TBA commitments ame valued at their fairvalue accomding bo the procederesdescribed under "Measurement” above. The contract s
marked to market daily and the change in fairvalue & recorded by the Master Fund &5 an unrealized gain orloss. Based on market circumstances,
the Managarwill determine whether to bake debivery of the underlying securities or bo dispose of the TBA commitments prior to setthement.

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derevative contracts may serve as 3 component of the Master Fund's investmant strategy and are utilized primardy to structure and economically
hedge imvestments 1o enhance parformance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other investment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
any darivatees 25 hedges for hedpe accounting purposes as described undar IFRS 9 and hance these derivative financial instrumeants ane classi-
fhadd at falr value through profit or loss, The derheative contracts that the Master Fund may hold orissue include, butare not limited to, forwards,
fubures, optians, certaln cusrency transacbons and swap contracts.

The Marster Fund may enter into opbions contracts. Losses may arize from changes in the value of the underlying instruments if thers & an iliquid
secondary market for the contracts, Winterest or exchange rates move unexpectedly orif the counterparty to the contract s unabbe b perform if
awritten call option s exercised, the premium ongmally recewved s recorded as an addition b2 sales proceeds. Ifawritten put opbion is exercised,
the premium onginally receivied 5 recorded as 2 reduction to thecost of investments. Exchange-traded options ane valued at the last sake price
or, if no sabes ame reporbed, the last bid price for purchased opbions and the last ask price forwritten options. OTC traded options ane valsed using
prices suppliad by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to optionson securities except that the premium paid of receved 5 to buy or grant the
right to enter into 2 previously agreed upen interest rate orcredit default contract. Forwand premium swap option cantracts include pramiurs
that have extended settlement dates. The datayed settement of the pramiume is factored into the dally valeation of the option contracts. in

the case of Interest rate cap and floor contracts, in return fof a premium, ongoing payments betweaen two parties are based oninterest rates
exeeeding aspecied rate, in the casa ofa cap contract, or falling below a specifiad rate in the cass of 2 floar contract.

The Master Fund may enber into futures contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying Instruments, if there i an dliquid
secondary market for the contracts, finterest or exchange rates move unexpestedly orif the counterparty o the contract & unable i perform
With futures, there ts minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since fubures ane exchange traded and the exchange's clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty to all exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements offinan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund records arealized gain or less equal to the difference bebween the value of the contract
atthetime ibwas openad and the value at the time ibwas closed Futures contracts arsvaluad st the quated daily settlament prices established
by the exchange onwhich they trada. The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchangs an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the
value of the futures contract Such receipts or payments are known a5 “varnaton margin.

The Master Fund may buy and sell forward currency contracts, which are agreemants babwean two parties 1o buy and sall currendias at a set
price on a fubure date. The U5, dollar valee of forward currency contracts is.determined using current forward curmency exchange rates supplied
by & quotation service. The fairvaliue of the contractwill fluctisate with changes in currency exchange rates, The conttact is marksd o market
daily and the change in fairvatue is recorded as.an unreal@ed gain o kss. The Master Fund reconds a realized gam or loss equal bo the difference
between the value of the contract at the bme it was opened and the value at the time itwas closedwhen the contract matures or by delevery of
the-currency. The finds could be exposed to risk if thevalue of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counter partes to the contracts are unable
to et the tarms of their contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter into a closing position. Risks may excead amounts recognized on the
Statements of financlal positon.
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The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally clearcd interost rate swap contracts, which are arrangements betwesn two partss to
exchange cash flows based on a notional principal amount AnOTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or soldwith an
upfiont premaum. Far OTC intenest rate swap contracts, an upfront payent recalved by the Mastar Fund is recorded a4 aliability on the Master
Fund's Books. &n upfront payment made by the Master Fund &5 recorded &5 2n asset on the Master Fund's books. OTC and centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily based vpon guotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Ay
changa (s recorded a8 an unrealized gain of loss on OTC intere st rate swagpes. Dady fluctuations in the value of cantrally clearad interast rate swaps
are settled through a central clearing agent and are generally recorded in vanation margin on the Statements of financial position and recordad
as unrealized gain or loss. Payments, including updront pramiunms, recened of made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the contract, Cartain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related
b these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of thecontract The funds could beexposed to Ccreditor market risk due to unfavorable
changes in the flrctuation of mberest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
oraclearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on it respective abligation to perform under the
contract The funds’ maximum rskof loss from counterparty risk or central chaaring risk i the fairvalue of the contract This rsk may be mitigated
farOTC intorost rate swap contracts by having & master netting arrangemant bebween the Master Fund and the counterparty and for cantrally
clearad intarest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin. There (S minimal counterparty riskwith respect to centrally
clearad interast rate swap contracts dus to the clearinghouse guarantes fund and other resources that are available In the avent of a clearing
member dafault Risk of loss may excead amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position

The Master Fund may enter inta OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts, which are arrangements o ecchange a market-linked
return fora periodic payment, both based on a notional prncipal amount To the extent that the total return of the security, index or other finan.
cial measure undarlying the transaction exceads.or falis short of the offsetbing interest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
framor make a pay ment to the counterparty. OTC and/for centrally clearad total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon
quotations from an iIndependant pricing service or market makers. Any change 5 recorded as an unrealizad gain or loss on OTC total return swaps.
Daily fluckuations in thevalue of centrally cleared total return swaps are settled through 2 central Cleanng agent and are generally mogrded in
wartation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded &5 unrealized gain or loss. Payments recaned or made are recorded as
realized gains of losses. Cartain OTC and/for centrally Cleared total retumn swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments relatad
b these swap contracts are accrusd basad an the terms of the contract The funds could be exposad to creditor market rek due to unfaverabls
changes in the fuctuation of interast rates orin the price of the underlying secerity or ndey, the possibility that there is no hquid market for these
agreamants or that the counterparty may default on its oblgation to perform. The funds’ maximum risk of koss from counterparty riskor central
clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total reburn swap contracts by having a master netting arrange-
rriefit bebaiean the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleaned total return swap contracts thiough the daily axchange of vanation
margin. There i minimal counterparty nskwith respect to centrally cleared total return swap contracts due to the cleaninghowse guarantze fund
and other resources that are available in the eventof a clearing member default. Risk of boss may exceed amounts recagnized on the Statements
offmancial posstion,

The Master Fund may anter into OTC andfor centrally cieared credit default contracts. In OTC and cantrally cleared credit default contracts, the
protaction buyer typically makes & panodic stream of paymants 1o a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receve a
contingant payment upen the socurrence of a craditevent on the reference obligation or all ether equally ranked obligations of the reference
entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration, For OTC credit
default contracts, an upfront payment recesved by the Master Fund & recorded 23 a labilty on the Master Fund's books, An epfront payment
made by the Mastar Fund is recorded as an assat on the Master Fund's books. Centrally cleared credit default contracts pravide the same rights
to the prataction buyer and seller except the payments babwaen parties, including upfront premiums, are sattled through a central clearing agent
thrugh variation margin payments. Upfront and penodic payments recetved or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and cantrally clearad credit
default contracts are recamad as realzed gains or lodses at the reset date or close of the contract The OTC and centrally ¢ leared creditdefault
contracts are marked to market datly based upon quotations from an inda pendent pricingservice or market makers. Any change in value of

OTC credit defaultcontracts s recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. Dady fuctuations in thevalue of centrally cleared credit default contracts
are generally secarded in variation margin on the Statements of financial posibion and recorded ac unrealized gain or loss. Upon the occurrence
of a credit event, the difference betwean the parvalue and fairvalue of the reference obligation, net of any proportional amount of the upfront
paymeent, s recorded as a realized gam orloss. In addibion to beaning the risk that the credit event will eccur, the funds could be exposed to market
risk due bo unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the underbying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
unable to civse out its position at the same time or at the same price 25 if it had purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circum-
skances, the Master Fund may enter into offsetting OTC and cantrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its ek of Ioss, Risks
ofloss may oxosed amounts recogmized on the Statements of financial position. The funds’ maxmum risk of kess from counterparty risk, sither
&5 the protection seller or s the protection buyer, i5 the fair value of the contract This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default contracts by
hawing a master natting arrangement babweon the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
the daily exchange of varkation margin. Counterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to cantrally cleared credit default swap contracts
dueto the clearinghouse guarantes fund and other msources that are available in the event of  clearing member default Whers the Master

Fund & aseller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future paymants the Master Fund may be required to make i5 equal i the
fetional amount

Income related to swap contracts is sccrued basedon the berms of the contract. Receivables and payables related to closed swap contracts
are presentad in the Financialassets or Fnancial Labilities at fairvalue through profit or loss line hems.on the Statements of financial position.
Realized and uniealized gams and losses on derivative contracts are inclyded in Net realized and change in unrealized gainf{loss) an financial
assats and financial liabilities at fair value through profiter loss.
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The notional amounts of certam bypes offinancial mstruments provide & basks for comparson with instruments recognized on the Statements
offinancial positian, but they do not nece ssarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involeed of the curment fairvalue of the st ments
and do not therefore mdicate a fund's exposure b cradit or market price ritks. The darivative instruments became (avorable (aasats) o unfavar
able {labilities) a5 2 result of fuctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to thelr terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent bowhich instruments are favorable or unfavorable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial aszets and labilties can fluctuate sianificantly from bme to time.

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund mvists in securibies issued by entibies which are primarity domiciled in countrias other than the Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indscate that capital gains taxes may be applcablie to non-residents, such as the funds. Typically, theze
capital gaing kaxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basts and, therefore, such tades may not be deductied by the Master Fund's
brokars on awithholding basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 — Income Toxes, the funds are required o recognize a tax abdlity when it is probable that the ke laws of foredgn coun-
trees recuire a tae labdlity to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relévant taing authorties
have full knowledge of alf the facts and circumstances. The bax lability s than measuned at the amount expected to be paid to the melevant
tancation authorities using the ta laws and rates that have been enactad or substantially enacted by the end of the reparting period. There 5
somatimes uncertainty aboubwhether or not atax lability will ultimately be pasd by the funds. Therefone, when measuring any uncertain tax
latslities management considers all of the relevant facts and crcumstances availabbe at the timewhich could mfluence the likelihood of paymant,
including any farmal of infarmal practices of the relevant tax authornities.

AtApril 30, 2022 and Apnil 30, 2021, the funds had nosignificant uncertain tax Habdity positions with respect to foreign capital gains taces.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

Attheend of the reporting pertods, April 30, 2022 and April 30, 2021, the Masber Fund had Class 5 and Class | Units available for ssue. Unless

the Manager determines otherwiss, the minimum initial investment for Class s is 200 Units and the minimum subsequent subscription shall be

10 Wnits, provided that the absolute minimam mitial mvestments shall be US550,000 or s equivalent in the rebevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines otherwics, the minimum number of Ciass | Units that can be 2ubscribed for yway of initial investrmentshall e 1,000,000
Linkts, the minimurm aggregate value of the mitial investment shall be US510,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
by wiay of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial mvestmant in Classi Units that the
Manager may determine shall be USS50000.

The Feader Fund has unlimited Units of capital. Each Unitwill re present an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFs Limited
ithe *Feeder Fund Trustee”), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and Issue Uniks from time to time by reference o a
separabe Class andfor series and determine the manner mwhich Units of any Class andfor senes differ from Units of amy ather Class andfor senes.
The Feader Fund currently has bwo Classes of Units, Class Jand Class M Units, which are investors into Class S of the Master Fund. Class M Units
are sold with 2 maximum frontend sales change of 2.25% and do not pay acontingent deferred sales charge ICDGC). Class ) Units do not pay 2
front-end sales charge and are subject to a COAC of up to 4.00% If those Units are redeemed within fove years of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines otherwise, the minimum initalinvestmant for Clase $COSChand Class M Umits shall be 300 Units and the minim m subssquent
subscriptionsshall be 10 Units.

The net assatvalee of each class & caloulated by dividing the net assets attnbutable to the holders of redeemable units of a particular class of

units, with the total number of autstanding redeemable units of that class. In accordance with the pravisions of the funds’ governing documents,
investment positions arevalued basedon the bidfask market price for the purpose of determining the net assetvaliee per unit for subscriptions
and redemphbons. Procesds and payments for redeamable participating units tssued and redeemed are shown as movements in the Statements
ofchanges in net assets attributable to holders of redeamable participating units. The Feader Fund generally provides its unitholders with the
right to redearn their interest in the Feader Fund at any dealing date (generally daily) for cash equalto the proportionate share of the net asset
value of the Fesder Fund, The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delegate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any application for Units
without stating any reason fordoing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeamable units, which are redeemable at the holdar's option and are classified
&5 financial habilities, The redesmablo units ate carried at the redemption amount that s payable 3t the end of the reporting penod, if the holder
exercises the nght o puet the unit back to the funds.

Lnit transactions for the years wene as Bllows

Master Fund Class s Clagsl
April3n April 30
2022 2021 2022 2l
Urets cutstanding at begnning af pear ST.R45680 57921525 1,085 105
Unitsissusd 316,352 4,122,319 - -
Rt i el (H.81a40T) (4904, 164) - -
Unit s outstanding at end of year A5 546 525 57,049,680 1086 1,086
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Faader Fumd Class J ClassM
April 30 April 10
2023 2001 2002 021
Urits cutstanding at beginning of year £2.241,045 54,761 525 M.A493,270 18,976 710
LIriES i 550 ed - - 1,361,000 9154350
Urits redeamed (3556 560) (5,520,420} (5,850,780 (3 587,690
Unitsoutstanding at end of yoar 38,684,485 49,241 048 19,573 560 24,492,370

AtApril 30, 2022, B0 of the Feeder Fund's Class J and Class M redeermable untswere held by one unaffiliaked investor (2021: 100961 At April 30,
2022, 100% of the Master Fund's Class 5 redeamable units were haid by the Feader Fund (2021: 1009%). AEApril 30, 2022, 100% of the Master Fund's
Class | redeemable unitswere held by an affilate of the Manager (2001: L0G%)

7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions tothe unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amount and st such time as determinad to be approprate, Attha
end of the reporting period, dnvidends paid by the Master Fund Class S amounted to 514,716,059 or S0.3817 per unit (2021 517,222 140 of 50,2985
pir unit) Atthe endofthe reporting period, thers were no dividends paid to Class | (021 SHIl).

Afthe and of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted to 59,222,928 or 50. 304 per unit (:021:
SLLBT3,108 O 50,237 per unit) and 55,450,431 or 50.24 per unit (2021: 55,513,930 0r 50.253 per unit), respectively. Distributions from the Feeder
Fund are recognized in the Statements of comprehensme incomse floss) as a finance cost

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have investmant guidelines that set out thaireveral | business strategies, thair tolarance fof risk and theis general risk managemant
philosophy. The funds' financial assets and labilities at far value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which may include:

Investmants including feed-income securities, floating rate secunbes and equity secunties;
+  Bonds that are secunitized debt instruments and other obligations of companies and governments workdwide;
Cash and short-tarm invastments; and

+  Dernatie transactions which the Master Fund enters into to manage the interest rate and curency risks ariging from the Mastes Fund's
investmient activities.

{a} Market pricerisk
Whilz It is.the intantion of the Manager to iImplement strategies which are designed to minimize potential losses, thera can ba no assurance that

thesa strategios will be successiul. IEis possible that an invvestor may lose asubstantial proporbon or all of its investment As aresult, each investor
should carafully consider whether it can affard to bear the riskof investing in tha funds.

The funds are exposed to market risk brhich incledes market price risk, foretgn currency risk, interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit or default
risk. The funds’ risk management process consists of a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs pericdic reviews and agrees on palicies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. These policies
hawa remained substantially unchangad since the beginning of the period towhich these fmancial statements relate.

Market risk arrses maknly from encertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. it rapresents the potential loss the funds might suffer
through holdeng market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors affecting all
Instruments traded in the market. The Manzgar considars the asset allocation of the funds in order to minimize the risk associated with particular
countries of industry sectors while continuimg to follow the funds investment objactive through a caneful selection of secunties and other finan-
cial instruments within specified limits. Market risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered into by the funds The
Manager measures both the Master Fund's total sk a5 well & their niskof underperformance varsys their stated benchmark.

Under normal markat conditions, the Manager expacts to invest 15%-65% of the Master Fund's nat assets in each of these thise sactors:

L%, and mvestment-grada sector - L3, government securibies and imnestment-grade bonds of LS. companies, High yield sector - lowar-rated
bonds of LS. companies, and Internation ai sactor = bonds of forargn governments and companias, inclueding both investment grade and
lowier-rated secusties.

At theend of the reporting penod, Investments in LS, securibeswere approximately 32% (2021: approximately 85%),
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Atthe end of the raporting periods, the funds' notional exposure on denvative contracts wias as follows:

April30

2022 FLIFSY

Purchuied inger o rane TEA COmeniLment Opion Comracis (Conract amaunt L= SL0S 000000
Purchuiiod inber s rane Swap Opoonoontr 31 [Conirec amount LT 51E 0L 11,064 253 055
Wl Rer indenest rate TEA COraritment ORTom Corracts (Contract amauni L= S105 000000
WA | IRen ntenest rate S OpDIoNCeRTFICES (Cortract amount SIETE TEa 44T R rUE)
Fuiures coniracts (rumber of contracts) ™" EF il 1553
Forward currency contracts (contract amount * ST6 AN 524065404
Ceritr ally cliared intérest rate Swap contracts inational) S5 B35468 $154057 2000
O total return Swap conlracts ationsl) S4,385.453 S42.450,553
Ceritrally cliared total return Swap contracts (notional) %= $364,380,539
O credit default contracts - protection purchased inotianal) $15,407565 538364008
O credit default contracts = protection sold inotional SE4651577 S17.372.500

* For thereporing persad, the Master Fund did not have notional expesure, in excess of 109, a5 a percent of net assets (2021: Euro sells 17.78%, Japanasaen
Duys: 12939, There are no 0Mer CoNCeniratons b aurmency risk imexcess of 109 of net assets as aresullof forwand derivative motonal s,
™ For thifepes g perkod, the Master Fund held LS, Tredsury securities withnumber of contracts baiing 721 and notiendl senounts 1otaling 5149 786,875 (1001:
Eurg-Bund and LS Treasury secunties wath numieer of contracts totaling 1,553 and notional amounts totsling $195.927.747),

Thevolume of activity for the reporting persods for any derivatine type that was hald during the period & listed Delow andwas s follows based on

an average of the holdings atthe end of sach fiscal quarter,

April3o

2022 2l
Purchased TBA comemilment option condracts (contract amownt) 217,200,000 S158, 100,000
Purdhased qumency option confracts foontract amaunt) 242,000,000 596,000,000
Furchased swap option contracts (contract amouny £1,462,700,000 £1,082, 200,000
Wiriten TEA commibment oplion contracts (oontract amount) £17.200,000 L1771, 100,000
Wi ten aurrency option confracts{oontract amount) 42200000 SET 00,000
Wiritten swap option confracts (contrack amount) £1,377.800,000 LRSS,EN0000
Futures contracts (numbeer of confracts) = 1000 1000
Forwiard currency contracts (oontract amound £502,200,000 L48E BO0000
OTC Interest rate swap confracts {notionall - —
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts inoticnal) 41,262,400,000 $1E3T. 100,000
OTC total returm swap contracts fotional) £5,200,000 459,100,000
Centrally cleared total refurn swap contracts (notional) SELEB00,000 S3R. 400,000
OTC credit delfault confracts{notionalk S130,800,000 16200000

" Fior i e por g parad, thisne werne g Doldings &t th nc of @@ N5 quan ter and thi IRandachions wers condidened minsmal,

** Far thereporting period, average of the Futures hotdings at notionalval es was $239.700,000 (2021: $376,000,000)

Aggregate Value at risk

TheValue at Risk (VaR) risk measure estimates the maxmumexpected Ioss In pre-taaation profit as a percentage of the fund's net assets over a
givan holding persed for a specified confidence level The vak methodalogy s a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into
account market volatiibies as well as risk diversification by recognizing effsetting posttions and cormelations between products and markets, Risks
can be measured consistently across all markets and products, and risk measures can be aggregated ko armve at a single risk number, Given the
interdependencies between marketvanables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss that is not expected to be exceeded at the
aith percentiie confidence level over a L-day horizon. The Manageruses a propriatary multi-factor moded to estimate the active rigk (ako refered
to as tracking error) frem which Vak estimates can be analytically derved. The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary over
tirme a5 a function of market and portfolie composition changes and ane representative of activity during the perigd.

Given its reliance on histoncal data VaR & most effective in estimating risk edpasu res in markets inwhich thers are no sudden fundamental
changes or suddan shiftsin market conditions. An inherent imitation of Vak is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factons may

fot produce socurats pradictions of future rek. Different vak methedologies and distributtonal asumptions could produce a materially diffsrant
VaR. Moreover, Vak caloulated for a one-day time horizen does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or offset
with hadgeswithin cne day. Changes in Vak batween reporting penods are genarally due to changes in levals of exposure, volatibties andfor
cormelations among assat cdasses
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The tabde below shows theVak of the Master Fund for both start and and ofthe review period

Fortfolio Benchmark® ** Ratio**
Aprilad, 2022 018 na na
April30,2021 086 n'a nfa

* WE BofaLLS, Treasury BIll Index

= TheMaster Fund uses a cash equivalent benchmank, therefone Val of the benchmark amd ValR ratio are not relevant.

The factor risk breakdown for the Master Fund for both startand end of the review period is presented in the table below, The risk decompeosition
s basad an expectad annualzed volatitity (L standard deviation). Active Risk (or Estimated Tracking Ereor “TE™) measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the portfolio and the benchmark using the current positions of each and the risk modets factor

COMErianoe makrx.
Fortfolio Benchrmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 202 Total Risk E40 017 83
April 30, 2021 Total Risk B4 004 58S

* WCE BofALLS, Treasury Bill Index

{b} Currency risk

Currency risk 13 the nisk that the fairvalee or future cash fiows of a financial iInstrumentwill Aectuate due to changes in forerzn exchange rates. The
risk arises on financial instruments that are denaminated in acurrency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. A portion
ofthe funds’ assets are hald in currencies other than the base currency with the result that the funds’ Statementsof financial position can be
significantly affected by currency movements.

Hon-base currency exposuras (eocluding the notional impact of forvard currency contracts) are detalled in the tables below. Manetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary terms in avery short perindof time. In the tables below, Hon-Monatary assets include
the fair value of the Master Fund's portfolio investments, Monetary assets and Babilities include the unrealized appraciabion and depreciation of
TEA sale commitments and dervative contracts. Forward cufiency contracts are antened into a5 a mathod of redicing currency fisk.

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2022

137/259

Assats M- Mon e ary Maoretary Total
Austraiian Dotlar - $1687,908 $1,E87,908
Erapfian Red - 5 142 5.4e
Biitish Pousnd L9382 358 L s 056096
Canadian Dollar - 468, M8 468, M8
Chilean Peso - 3432 1,432
Lzech Kpmuna - a3y 0237
Euro 1046 E58 4017165 16063803
Japaneseyen = 445,854 445,854
Mexican Peso - 4,587 4682
Bew Zealand Doltar s 427022 427023
Bl an Krone - 21634 21634
Palish Zioty - 165491 b6.541
Swedish Krona - w5947 255,547
S35 Franc - 13961 12961
58,585,086 13,564,558 $32,549,544
Liabilitias Hon-Mon gt ary Manatary Total
Australian Dotlar - 4914 542 4014542
Enitish Pound - 4233667 4133667
Canachan Dollar - 447 a4y
Chilean Peso = 5.281 5281
Crech Kisuna - 6479 26474
Eurgr = 17333 TERT333
Japaneseen - 1,033,176 2,033,176
Mewican Peso - 1755 1,755
Mew Teaand Dollar - 191 1.91%
HOnwegan Krons - 0682 689
Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 20
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Falish Doty = 312,309 512,309
ZwedishErona - 5312 5319
Swiss Franc - 7211 T2
§= 515 836 580 518,836,680
Currancy MNomn-Monetary Manetary Total
Canadian Dollar = 46 %6
CIech Fonuna a3 43
Eurgy - 15 16
§— £65 65
Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 20, 2021
Assels Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Alstraiian Doflar = SE491 68T THGLERT
Enbsh Pound - LA5E 512 LAEGE1T
Canadian Dollar - EM.002 524502
Eurdy 1519486 2162706 11652092
Hong Kong Dollar - 50,312 50,312
Japaneseven - BEZ 043 BEE 043
Wew Iealand Dollar - 29933 19,933
Mordegian Krone - HENU |EIH
SwedishEron - T3 FERFE]
S5 Franc - i ] 62559
3579 486 £12,708,391 S16IITATT
Liabilities Han-Monetary Monetary Total
Austraian Dodlar S SR80 044 LIR00488
Bninsh Pound - LOEE 636 LG5, B96
Canadian Dollar - 404 316 404 106
Eurcr - 12556845 b2 456549
Japaneseyen - 1,789,435 1,289.435
Mew Zedand Dollar — £48.578 GER5TE
Monwegian irone - 31,544 21584
Sepedish rrond - 147,157 1an.1a7
S35 Frang - TE G5 Ti 645
5— 516,950,304 515,990,304
Currancy Man-konetary Monetary Toral
Enitish Found §— 1504 SE04
Canadian Boliar - 3 &
CIech Romung - a 47
Eurg - 230,754 0,754
§— $741,311 5241,311

{c Imterest rate risk

Imterest rate risk is dafined as the nsk that the fairvalue of fubure cash flows of a financial instrumentwill luctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The riskartses on financial instruments whose fairvalue or futuee cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates Shart-term sacun-
thes are less sensitive to Intenest rate changes than longer-term secunties, but they also usually offer lower yields. A portion of the Master Fund's finan-
cial assets and Habilithes are debt instruments with floating interast rates, which, in the Manager's opinion, are generally less sensitive o interest rate
changes but may dacline in value ftheir interest rates do nok rise as much, oras quickly as interest rates in general Conversaly, floating rate instru-
rnentswill not generally ncrease invalue If interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will ako affect the amaunt ofinterest Income the Master
Fund earms on its fioating rate investments,

High yield securities risk
The Master Fund mvests in fed income securibies rated Baad or lower by Moody's or BEE- or lower by S&P (commionly known as " junk® or high

yiald” bonds). These sacurities are considered speculative and, while genarally providing greater incomea than imvestment in higher-rated securities,
Invobe graater risk of principaland incorme (including the possibility of default of bankruptey of the tssuers of such securities) and may involve greater
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wirlatility of price (aspecially during paricds of economic unoertainty or change) than securities in the higher rating categories, Becauseyialds
vary over time, nospacific level of income can ever be assuned. These lower-rated, high yieldng fixed income secunties penerally tend to reflect
economic changes fand the autlaok for econamic growth), short-tarm corparate and industry developrments and the market's perceptian of their
creditquality (especially during times of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higherrated securitieswhich react primanily to fluctuations

in the general level of interest rabes falthough these lower rated ficed income securities are also affected by changes in interest ratesy Inthe past,
economicdowntunms or an increats in interest rates have, under certam drcumstances, caused a highar incidence of default by the issuars of
these securities and may do 50 In the future, especially In the case of highly leveraged issuers.

Payment risk

The ssuers of debt securities held by the Master Fund may be able bo call a bond or prepay principal due on the securibies, particularly during
pargds of declning intarest rates. The Matter Fund may not be able to reirvest that principal at attractee rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may lose any premium paid. The Master Fund would also lose the benefit of falling interest rates on price of the prepaid
bond. On the other hand, rising intetest rates may cause prepay ments to ooccur atslower than expected rates, This effectively lengthens the
raturities of the affected securties, making them more sensite o interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net assel value morne volatiba.
Sacurities subject b prepayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates dacling, and may offer greater potential for loss

when interest rates rise.

The tabdes balow present the interest rate profile of the Statemants of financeal posttion categarized by maturity dates. (Apnl 30, 20210 table values

donat include Commaon Shocks fair value of $221)
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Interest Rate Risk April 30,2022
Lessthan 1 Hon-nterest
wiar 1-Syears Over 5 years beaning Tatal
Assats
Cash and cash equivalents 545 i 562 o G 336,559 545 166 1T
Sales ofinvestments awaiting setiament - — - T4 A14 I MER
Receivable for variationmargin on
hutures contracts 142, 23 - - - 142,659
Receivable for variationmargin on cerrally
claared swap confracts MOELT - - - MOELT
Inferest and other recenvables - - - 4,050,447 4,050,447
Financial Assets at fair value througn prodit
oF ot 50,198617 E9.537.897 TIHR5E. 544 1141170 BL0,436,278
Totalassets 596,311,201 559,537,897 5733 556 544 5306,176,590 51,200,584 632
Liahilities
Purchases of inwestments awaiting settiement - §= = $385,831,372 $385,831,373
Fedempiices of units swaitng settlement - - - 1533 148 1533148
Collateral omcertam defivative contracts,
atvalue 140,456 T52038 3,002 EER - 3,895,052
Payable for managerraent s - - - Tra0ET Trame?
Pavabilie for custody ard Sdimen SIrative ks - - - 115086 115,056
Oither accried expenses - - - 292553 392553
Financial Liabdlines af tair value thiough prosit
oF joss 037304 23ER0. 243 421337038 ra4)aim AER032.003
Total labilities (exclu ding net
assets attributablete holders of
redesmable unitsh 520,513,750 524,532 271 $424,339 206 390,046 5455 5860572 522
Interest Rate Risk April 30,2021
Lessthan Non-ntersst

1year 1-Syears Dwar S yaars bearing Tetsl
Azl
Cash and cash equivalents S9699,452 G 5= SHEE, T $10.568,110
Saless of Inves iments aw anng Sel lament - - - B4, 094 202 B4, 094 507
Subacrpbons ofUnits awa ting settlement = = = BIS 519 Bx5.518
Inkerest and other recesvables - - - 4 405 T3 4455 BT
Finencial Assers.an fair value theough poodit
or boss 118,224,192 20,211,350 696,116,156 2,354,187 896,805,785
Total assets 127,923 674 580,211 250 5696,116 156 592,529,115 5096,780,155
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Liakilities

Purdhases of iInvesiments awalimg settlement b b= = $IIBI5T5LD $295,957529
Redempnicns ofunits awalting settiement - - - L444,133 1449133
Fayabl e for vaaton margn on

fulures contracs 18,847 - - - 12897
Paryabile for vananon margn oncentrally

dlearad swap contracts Ta.he2 — - - 13591
Collater al o Certain defivative coniracts,

atvalue - - T50,000 - Ta0,000
Fayable for managerment s - - - 47090 547,030
Fayablie for cusiody ardd adirars SIrative fds - = - 179,192 1332
Other accrued expenses - — - 136,790 36,790
Firencial Liabalimes at fair value though profic

of lorsd 41T RET 14,003,351 MIEMAL 3217845 TE5A4L3.356
Total liabilities (excluding net

assats attributableto holders of

rideemabile units) 54,210,148 £14,208 381 S204,624 512 5302 628,180 $528, 716,189

Hon-base interest rate exposures xcluding the national impactof interest rake swap contracts) are detailed in the tables above. Interest rate
swap contracts are entered into a5 a mathod of reducing interest rate risk.

April 30
Inberest Income 1012 1021
Cashand cash equivalents © 0,215 523954
Deebit Securities:
AL Tairwalue through profit of foss NN ] LB EGT
Total 521,128 084 £ 653,761

* Thaz Master Fund had no knterestincome from imestments in aiffiated issuers for the periods endng Apri 20,2022 and 2071,

{d} Liquidity risk

This ts the risk that the fundswill encounter dificulty in meeting obligations associated with financlal labilities: The main kabilty of the funds

15 the redempticn ¢-fany units that investors wish to sell. The Master Fund's financial instruments that include investments in OTC dermeative
contracts, iFany, which are not traded in an organized pubbic market, may be illiquid. As aresult, the Master Fund may not be abbe to prompthy
liquidate some of thewr investmants in these nstruments atan amount close to their fairvalue in order to meet their Bquidity requirements or to
respand to specific events such a5 deterioration in the creditworthiness of any parbcular Bsuer.

To minkmize of mitigate the effect of liquidity rskwhere deemed necassary, the Manager can elthar m-position the portfolio or adjust the
alkrcation to obtain a higher concentration of mare liquid and viable secunties a3 detailed in the investment olbjective.

Furswant o the funds’ investment policy, the Manages i to monitor on an ongoing base the funds’ iquidity position. Redesmable units
are radeamed on demand at the halder's option, However, the Manager does not foresee that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
reprasantative of te actial cash outflows, s holders of these instruments typically ratan them for the medwm to long-term.

The tables below analyze the funds” assats and liabilies into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the Statements of
financial position date to the contractual matunity date, The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, (April 30, 2021
tabie valwes do not Include Common Stocks farvalue of 5221)

Liquidity Risk April 30,2023
Greaterthan

Lessthan 1Month 1-3Months 3 Months Tatal
Total Assets F143,538 686 548,141,143 SA08 604 803 51,200,584 632
Liabilities
Purdhasasof imvestiments awaling settlement 187500581 193 330,192 - 385,831,373
Fesgheampcas ol units awalting settlement 1533 148 - - 1533, 148
Collaberal on Certamn dervative contracts, abvalue - - 855,152 1895052
Fayable for managament fees 112027 - - TR
Fayable for custody and admni sirative fees 115068 - - 115,065
Other accrped expertes 91,553 - - 391553
Firanceal Liabdlities at fair value ol gh profit or loss G ALTAZT BM1E 455,333,152 460,032,303
TotalLiabilities 5194771802 F106,572 416 SA59,228, 304 860,572,511
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Liquidity Fisk April 30, 2021
Graater than

Lessthan LMaonth 1=3Months A Months Tats
Total Assets 5166387 682 38,464 576 ST9L, 927,937 5996 780,155
Liabilkbes
Purdhases of Investrments svaltig settlement 193,274,492 102 ERZ037 - 295,957,529
Redampicns of Units swating settlement 1445133 - - L.443.133
Payable for variaton margn on futures contracts 18897 - - 18,897
Payable for vanabon margn on centrally deared swap oonfracts 13592 - - 135493
Collaneral o cer Lain dif bvalive CORPac TS, atvalue = =] TR0 o000
Payable for management fees 54T 090 - - 5T, 00
Fayable for custedy and admin strative fees L7975z —_ - 179,792
O BT b B J36.750 - - 336,790
Firusrcnal Liatalimis ar fair value theough profi or loss 1468312 3.THLA5E T, B3 05 125413356
TetalLiabilities S197,245,098 5107464, 592 5100,913,099 515,216,169

(e} Credit risk

The fundswill be exposedto a credit risk on parties with whom they trade and will ako bear the risk of settlemant default. The nskof default on
securities traded & considerad minimal a8 dalivery of secun tes sald s enly madewhen the brokar has received paymeant Payment iz mads ona
purchasewhen the securties have been receved by the broker. The tradewdl fad ifeither party fails to meet its obligation.

The funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undertaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Rishs associatedwith darvative contracts, if any, involve the possibility that
the countarparty to the contract may default on its obbgation to perfarm

The fair value of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to outstanding repurchase agreements is 527,838,861

(2021: 541,616,000}
The Master Fund generally invasts in financial assatswhich have a credit rating assezned bywiall-known raling agencies.
Puuntl!enl' Met Assets
Rating Aprl a0
2012 1021
ARASAZD 50.55% BE. 1 2%
AASAS 079 0T
AR 134 182
B8E/Baa T84 28
28/Ea 16.30 1676
Be 1174 1184
COCHC 33 aned beedowi (211 .20
A+ 1583 1734
Al B0 264
Linrated” (19300 [E.7H
100, 00% 109,005

® inander tomonitor theonedit quality of the "Unrated” underlying debt secuntes, thamanager, on the basis of the internal nesaarch, prepanes it own raiings for
thewarious instrumeants forwhich pubdidly avail able o editratings are not availlable. The Manager reviews the key financial metrics of theissue and structural
features of the sinsments in order to caloulate the miplied ratings for eachof theseinstruments. Cash, denvative instrurmants and net other assets areshown
i EneLnrated category. Payables and recevables for TRA mostgage comimibments areimluded in tha Linfated catepory and may resultin negathe we ghis.
Unrated debt securities have been assessed by the inves iment manager to have oredit quality consstentwithin B/8 and COCCaa and below rated sequrities.

Creditqualities are shown asa percentage of the Master Fund's natassets as of April 30, 2022 and 2021 A bond rated Baa or higher (Prime-3
or higher, for short-term debi) s considered investment grade. This chart reflacts "best” ratings between Moody's, Standard & Poor's BEF)
and Fitch, showing ratings based on 5&F lettering. TEBA mortgage commitments, if any, are included based on thew ssuer ratings. Rabings and

portiolo credit quality will vary aver time.

The funds themsebees have not been rated by an indepandent rating agency.
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The credit crisis could have an iImpacton the Master Fund's remaining securities f othar counter parties are farced to file for bankruptcy or are
othenyise unable to perform their abligations. The funds are exposed tocredit risk, which s the risk that a counterparty will be unable t pay
anruits in full when they fall due.

The funds are also exposed to counterparty creditrisk on trading denvatee products, cash and cash equivabents, and amounts die from brokers
and other recapsable balances. The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protection sefler or &5 the protection buyer,
is the fair valoe of the derwatiee contracts, This risk i mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master natting arrangement between the Master
Fund and the counterparty, Where the Master Fund & aseliarof protaction, the mazimum potential amountof futers payments the Master Fund
rmay e required 0 meake & equal te the noticnal amount of the relevant denvative confract

The Master Fund 5 a party to 1504 (International Swaps and Dervatves Associabion, Inc ) Master Agreaments that govern OTC darivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements thatgovern transactions imvobving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securithes that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreemants) with certain counterparties entérad into from time B time:
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties general obligations, re presentations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and early termmaticn. With respact to certain counterpartios, in aocordance with the eoms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account by the funds’ custedian. The Master Fund's collateral is
dalverad to the counterparty by either pledging or transfernng collateral to the counterparty. Collateral can bein the form of cash or debt sacu-
ritses isyed by the U5, Government or related agencies or cther securities a5 agraaed to by the Master Fund and the appBcable counterparty.
Coliateral requirements are datermaned Basod on the Master Fund's net position with each counterparty. With respect to ISDA Master Agroamants,
termination events applicabie to the Master Fund may eccurupon adeching in the Master Fund's net assets below aspecified threshold overa
cartain pariod of time. Termination events applicab e to countarpar s may coour upon a dechine in the counterparty’s long term or shar-term
credit ratings below aspecified level In each case, upon occurrnce, the other party may elect to terminate early and cause sattlement of all
denvatie and foretgn exchange contracts sutstanding, including the paymant ofany losses and costs resulting from such aarly termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decsion by oneor more of the Master Fund's counterparties toelect early tarmination could
IFrpact the Master Fumnds futu e dervative soUvity.

Attha close ofthe reporting period, the Master Fund had a net liability position of 524,530,796 (2021 $29,325,035) on open dervative contracts
subgach to the Mastor Agreoments. Collateral posted by the Mastar Fund at pericd end for thess agreements totaled 524 118578 (3021
430,064,000) and may include amounts related to unsettied agreaments.

The Master Fund's main credit risk concentration is spread between debt secunties and trading dervative products. Less than 10% of the fair
value of favorable contracts outstanding arewith asingle issuer with the exception of Unifarn Mortgage-Backad Sacurities, which wede valued
al $482,130,931 0r 56.70% of fair value st the end of the reporting periad April 30, 2022 (2021 Uniform Mortgage- Bac ked Secunties, whichwere
valued at $362L136,779 or 41.07% of fair value).

The funds are exposed to credit risk associated wath the Custodian who holds a portion of the funds financiad assets and U5, cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depasitary operations for the Master Fund's investmeant transactions. Tha Custodian alse provides some of the
shart-term lending facibities to the Master Fund. The fundswere aboexposed to Custodian riskon cash and cash equivabents that the Custodian
hias fatled to treat carrectly in accordance with procedures agread to by the funds.

The maimum exposure bo cradit risk a5 of the reporting date can be anabyzed as follows at the end of each reporting periad:

April 30
Instrumant Type ¥ 1021
Firarcial assets andliabalities at fairvalu e through profit of loss comprised of:

Fixed imcome irestments $TT2609,206 $20,216,7E3
Repurchase agreements 123,000 40,800,000
Derrwative assats™ 48,426,133 kTR
Cashand cash equivalents 45, TEE. 22T 10568310
Sales ofinves iments awaltkng setlement 554884 84,0594 BB
Subscriphions ofurits awsting settlement - Bissly
Inferest and other recesvables 4 050,447 4,485 BT
Frecefvable for variationmargin on futures contracts e -
Receivable lor variationmarngin on cerdrally cléared Swap contracts HMOEIT -

* Drivatned a35es arecomprsed of fonward contracts, OTC swap contracts. Bnward premium Swap oplion coniracts, purdhased options, purchased swap
opliors. wilten optons, afd weilten Seag options. The maimuem crad 105k on witban apions $nd writben Seid opions i evaluated on & securi ly basis, based
an thevalwe of premiums pad on each secunity. Themaximum credit risk on certain dervative a55ets|s miligated as 4 result of the Master Fund's enfiorceable

master netiing amangemant (Notes £ and 12,
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The Master Fund measumes credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at defa ult and loss given default.
Managemeant considers broth histomncal anakysis and forvard looking information in determining any expected credit loss, AL Apnl 30, 2022 and
April 30, 2021, all other receivables, amounts due from brakers, cash and short-tarm deposits are held with counterparties with a credit rating of
AAfha or higher and are due to be settledwithin L weelk Management considers the probab ility of default to be close to zero &s the counterpar.
ties have & strong capacity to meet their contrachual cbligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
Lrmanth expected credit losses a5 any such impairment would be wholly insignificant o the Master Fund.

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating tssued by Moody's at yearend of Aa% (2021: Aa3) On February 28, 2002 IHS Markit Ltd.
mierged with &P Global Inc. S&F Global Inc. had acredit ratng issieed by Moody's at year end of A3 (IHS Markit Lid 2021 Bal).

Senior loans are purchased or soldon awhen-issued ordelayed delivery basts and may be settled a month or more after the trade date, which
framn time bo bime can delay the actual irmestment of available cash balances; interest income & accrued based on the terms of the secunibies.
Senior loans can beacquired through an agent, by assignment from another holder of the loan, or a5 a participation interest in anather holdars
portion of the loan. When the Master Fund imvests in a loan or participation, the funds are subject to the nisk that an mtermediate participant
betwaen the Mastar Fund and the borrower will fail to meet its obligations to the Master Fund, in addition to the risk that the bomower under the
lovan may defaulton its obligations.

Pursuant to the funds’ iInvestment policy, the Manager i to monitor on an engoing bases the funds’ credit positan,

{fi Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ varkous investment techniques and instruments for investment purposes or for efficlent portfolic management of
their assets for hedging apainst market movemants, currency exchange, interst rate risks or otherwize. Any such instruments are used under
the conditions andwithin the limits lad down by the Manager. The Master Fund utilzed forwards, futums, aptions and swap contracts during the
reporting period, and any resulting gains or losses were reported in the Staternants of comprahensive income (loss).

{g) Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impairmant provision of other receivabbes and payables are assumed b approximate their fair vatues. The fairvalue of
financial labilitses for dieclosure purposes s estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fliow at the current markat interast rate that =
avallable to the Master Fund far similar financial instraments.

Amendment to IFRS 7 "Financia! Instruments: Disclosura® reegueras the Master Fund o classify fairvalue measurements wsing a fairvalue hierarchy
that raflects the significance of the inguts vsad in making the messuements.,

Guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1)

Inputs othar than quoted prices includedwithin Level 1 that are observable for assetor labibty, either directly dhat s, as prices) or indirecthy
(thatie, dereved frorm pricas) (Lewval 2)

Inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data (that ts, unobsarvable inputs) {Level 3).

The levelin the fair value higrarchywithin which the fair value measuremant i categonized in its entirety Is determinad on the basis of the lowest
leval mput that & significant to the fair value measerement in its entiraby. For this purpose, the significance of an input & assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entiraty, fa fairvalee measurement use s observable inputs that require significant adustrent based on uncbservab e
Imputs, that measurement s a Leval 3 measuremant. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measuremant in it antirety
requires judgment, considenng factors specific to the asset or labildy,

The datermination of whatconstitutes “observable” requines significant judgment by the fumds. The funds conuder observable data to be that
rarket data that is readily available, regularly destnbuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sowces that are actively involved in the relevant market,

Investmentswhose values are bated on quoted market prices in active marke ts, and therefore classfied within Level L, inclede active Hstedequi-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, LS, gowernment treasury bills and certain non -5, sovereign obligations The Master Fund does not adgust the
quoted paice forthess mstruments

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considared to be active but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealar quotations
oralternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs ame classified within Level 2 These include investment-grade corparate bonds and
certain non-LL5. soverzign obligations, listed equities and OTC derevatives. As Level 2 investments include positions thataee not traded i active
riarkets andfor are subject o transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to refiact iLliquidity andfor non-transferability, which are genarally
based on avallable marlet information,

For financiad instruments forwhich thene i no active markat, the Master Fund may use internally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techniquas generally racognized s standaid weithin the industn [nputs for assats and lablities that sfe not based on
observable market data are classified within Level 3.
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The folipwing table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and lisbilites measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting perssd Apnl 30, 2022

Fair valug ~Financial astets Lovad 1 Ll Laval3 Total
Investment in seourit ies:
Fisiiend i oimies
Asserbacked seounines §=— SL220.540 §— 51,220,340
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, atvalue 2,160,000 1735152 — 3895152
Corvertible bonds and notes
Capital poods - M3.064 - 43064
COMMPINHC AN SErvioes -_ 1,063,675 - LOEETE
Conumer ondicals - 3,391 549 - 2,381.545
Corsumer staples — L445.172 - 1495172
Energy - BILIIS - B2L.3E8
Firanciss - 214,060 - 214000
Healihcare - 2133002 - 2132002
Tedhmalogy b 5,140,362 - 5,140,262
Transportation - 581,150 - SRL150
Uit tiess and proweer - 59480 o 359,480
Corporate bonds and notes
Bagic matenals = AT 78,355 - 4,778,995
Capital goods = 3,025,839 - ]
O MHCATION Services — 5ES8,662 - 5,858,662
Cionsurmer cydicals - 12,253,060 - 12,954,060
CormEumer staples - 4,205 5% - 4, 10595
Ere gy = 15372737 = 15,372,737
Finandals - LagTeel - THETAEL
Health care — 4,557,357 — 4557357
Tachnalogy - 1043018 - 1043118
Trabportation - ELTAZ0 = 47680
Litishes and power - 1072442 - 1072442
Foregn goverrmeent and agency bonds and note - 11481483 - IL481483
Mortgage-backed securities
Aganty colliteralined rmartgage obligations = 24543511 = B4.542501
Commercial morigage-backed secutities — 34,353,379 - 34,353,379
Resdential mor lgagebacked secuntes — 42,786,050 - 47,785,050
Purchised Paap opns pulitanding - 8510569 - 2500565
Servor loans
Basicrmatenials - 5T - 415,971
Capital goods - 511,616 — 511,616
COMITICABon Services - 215000 - 2E5,000
Cormimer fyclicals - 1585470 - 1585470
Corrmmer staples — 536,072 - 536072
Ervrgy - 7188 - AL
Financials - 22501 — 22,801
Health care - L117.330 - LT3
Technology = T = TIT4T
Trarspeortation - 57,211 - =i B}
Shof E-1ermm Meestments - 540533 - 35 E40552
LS, govemment and agancy morizage obligations - 473,500,056 - 483,909 055
Tetalinvestmant in securities 2,160,000 S06,252 775 - #08,412,TT5
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Darivatives:

Forwsard contyacty 5= 52141170 §= Sa14L170
Foanward premaum seap option contracts — 29927347 — 79 927,347
QTG Credil Giehanlt contracts - 9,954,936 - 9.954.035
Totalderivatives . 42013453 - 42,003 451
TetalFinand al assats 3t fair valugthrough profit or lass SO50,425, 228
Fairvalue - Financial assets Lavel 1 Laval2 Lavald Total
LCash eguivalents b= $45,739 668 f— 445759 608
Centrally cleared imberast rate swap contracts - 3h.148,082 - 31,748,182
Fulires confracis 915,313 - - 1H18.382
Fair Valug - Financial liabilities Lavel 1 Level2 Levell Total
Derivatives:

Fodwiard contracts S— 2441408 £ S24414328
Forward premium swap splion contracts — 1247249 — ITaTAW
OTC Tal refurmn Swap contracts - 51036 - 251035
OTC Credit default contracts — 17879539 — 1TETa58
Totalderivatives = 54,044 502 = 54,044,502
TEA sale commitments - 306.837.078 - 396,831,078
W1 TRy Swap OpNS Guistanding - 17,150,623 - 17,150,623
TotalFinand al Bavilities at fair value through prafit or loss S468,032 103
Fairvalug - Financial liabilities Lavid L Lavel2 Lavel3 Total
Cantrally cleared interast rate swap contracts 4= 522,311.934 §= S22.311,934

All other assets and labilibes not measured at fair value but forwhich fairvalue & disclosed are classified as Level 2 Refier to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and abilities and to Hotes 3.and 4 for adescription of the valiation techniques.

The folipwing tabbe analyzes the farvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's inancial assets and liabilities measured at fzirvabue at the end of the
reporting perid Apnl 30, 2021

Fair valug - Financial assets Lavel 1 Lavel2 Laveld Total
Investment in seourities:
Commion stocks:
Energy | b — S22l
Fied n;;mt
Asselbacked secuntes - 5,636,112 - 536,122
Collateral on certain derpvative contracts, alvalue TED,000 - = 750,000
Cormeer tible bonds and nates
Capetal goods — F26564 - 326,564
COmmurication services — 1857 270 — 1LES7 270
Consumer cypclicals — 5514855 - 514,835
Consumer staples o 1584535 — 1,984 535
Energy — L541L317 — 1,541,317
Fimangals . 1468143 — 1AGE, 148
Healthcare — 5517674 Y 5,6IT.6T4
Tedhnology = 11973697 ] 11,979,697
Transpoetation == 1,736 270 == LT96. 270
Utiktres and power = TE9.408 == 133,409

Putnarm Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 22

145/259



EDINETOOOO

O0O0000000000000000000000000(E15262)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

Corporate bonds and mobes
Bas; matenals - $4.916,373 5= 54916373
Capaal goods - 6263299 - Ll o
COMmMUnICAtIoN Services - ETELINT - ETELIMT
Consumer cylicals - 16545 588 - 16,545 985
Corsurmer staples - 4520315 - 493038
Enr gy - 14,355 357 - 14,368,357
Fininici s - L0A455.077 - 10455077
Health cang - 6119054 - 6.009.054
Tethnalogy - 4138891 - 4,138,691
Traspod laton - TITLE2 - TiTieE:
LIS and o = 1344452 = 1344452
Forelgr goverrment and agenty bonds and nates - 0,005 456 - 605,455
Mortgage-baded securities
Agency collaterslped morigage obdigations - 101 545441 - 101 545441
Camrreraal morigage-backed securities - 30,562.136 = 30561735
Residential mortgage-badked secunties - 56,100, 290 = 56,100,290
Furchased oplions cutstandng - 02600 - 02,600
Furchased swap optiors cutslanding = 9676476 - ETEATE
Senior loans
Basic matenals - 1473896 - 147385
Capdtal goods - 1,700,508 - 1,100,508
Communication serices - 131102 - 1310
Corsumer cyclicals - 2,517,750 - 2517750
Corsumer stapdes - 851,647 - 51647
Finandals - g3.8I7 - B38a7
Healthcare - 1863459 - 1,863,469
Tednology - 313523 - 373533
Transportation - 365873 - 365,873
Short-term imestments - 112927491 - 112927491
L5, government and agency martgage obll gations - 372643100 - ITrA43100
Tatal invastrment in securities TS0,000 570,648,000 = £T1,396,080
Darrivatives:
Forwand contr & ts = 52,254,187 = 52,254,187
FOrwand preniuim Swad opion Contract - 10,302,062 - o2l
QTC Tota refunn Swap Confracts - o aar - a2y
QT Cradil defaull contracts - L1 735400 - 12736400
Tetal darivatives - 25405,906 - 25,409,926
Total Finand al assets at fair valugthrough profit or loss F856, 506,006
Fair Valug ~Financial assats Lavel 1 Leval2 Leval3 Tetal
Cashegavalents G 659,452 G 9559452
Conir sty cleansd Inerest rane Saap contracts - 20947559 - 0,947 559
Conitrally cleansd tatE réfunn Swap Contracs - 6018143 - 6008,142
Fufures contracts 199,298 - - L3098
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Fair valug - Financial llabilities Lavel 1 Lavel2 Level3 Total
Drivatives:

Forward contracts = 43217846 = 43217846
FOrw@r o premium ssap oplion contracts - $048 Adb - 9,048 4
OTC Total returm swap confracts - GEATE - 68 4TE
OTC Creditdefault confracts - 35916654 - 36,906,634
Total derivatives - 49,751 404 - 49,251 404
TBA sale commitments - 161037034 - 161,037,034
Wiritten options cutstanding - A42AES - 442 485
Writien swap ophions outstanding - 14, 62243 - 14,687,443
Total Finandal babilities at fair value through profit or loss 5215 413,366
Fairvalug = Financial liabilities Liswl 1 Ll 2 Laval3l Total
Cenir sty cheared interest rate swap contracts 4= SNT.T4T 656 i— 17747656
ey aliy clearesd ol refurn swap Contracts - 14,358,043 - 14,752,043
Futures coniracts 182978 - - 182,578

All gther assats and lkabdlites not measured at fair value but forwhich fairvalue i disclosed are classified as Lavel 2. Refer to the Statemants of
financial position for a breakdewn of assets and lakilibes and to Hotes 3 and 4 for a description of the valvation technigues.

Financial Assets at fairwalue through profit or loss:

April 20
1022 2021
Firancial assets held for rading:
Cashequivalents 445,720,658 LHEA9.487
Debl securities TEOAEE52] 747,339,292
Equity satmibies = i |
Repurchase agreaments 27.793,000 A0, B0, 00y
L5, treasury bills and commencial paper (3021 L5, teasury bells and commencis paper) 8.47533 72127451
Derhvatives 50534002 3518002
Collateral on cortaln derivative contracts 1895152 TE0.000
Total finan cial assets at fairvalue through profit orless (including cash equivatant s} 5896, 165 256 55906 505 488
April 30
brLir] a1
Other net changes in fairvalue onfinancial assets at far value through profit or loss:
Realized H76,391,025) S2LE21655
Change inunrealized BT 506,707
Total galns/(losses) 548,129,297} 533,748,362

{h} Capital risk management

Thecapital of the funds & represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The amount of net assets attributable to
hekders of radeemable units can Change signficantly on a daily basiz, as the funds are subject to daily subsenptions and redemptions at the
discreticn of unitholders, The funds’ abjectve when managing capital 15 to safeguard the funds ability to continue as 3 going concern in order
te provide returns for unithaldars and maintain acapital base to support the devaloprmant of the investmant activithes of the Master Fund. The
Manager, at (ts discration, may scale down asgnificant redemption that it deemswould matenally prefjudica the management of the funds in

atcordancewith its investment objectives.
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In order to malintadn or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies ane to perform the following:

«  Monitor the level of daily subscripbiens and redemphions relative o the assets it expects to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amant of distributions (if any} the funds pay to redeemable unitholders,

Redearn and Bsue rew uniks in socordancewith the constitutional documents of the funds, which include the ability to restrict redamptions
and require certam manimum holdings and su bscriptons.

The Manager monitors capital on the bases of thevalue of nat assets attributable to redeamabla unitholders

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a} Transactions with Related parties who have significantinfluence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, miay be entitled to an annual fee of up to 2.00% for Class 5 Units and 0.60% for Class [ Units payable oot
ofthe assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management feewas not assessed to Class 5 Units
atsodiated with the Master Fund, The Manager will receme an annual fes of up to 1.60% for Class J Units and L00% far Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feader Fund, per annum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of the Feedar Fund

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributors, Ltd. (the Distributor], an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed betwesn the Manager and
the Distributor cut of the Manager's fes. The Distributor may share its faes with other parties such as other sub-distributorsin such manner and o
such extent as it sees fit from time to time. At the end of the reporting period, the Manager paid the Distnbutor 53,657,950 (2021 54,307, 212).

It & currently expected that the total expense ratio fencluding amortized organizational expense) for Class J Unitswill not exceed 1.80% and
Class MUnits will not exceed 1.20% per annum of the average monthhy Met AssetValue of the Feeder Fund. As of April 30, 2022, the Manager reim-
bursed the Fesdar Fund 572,533 for expenses that exceeded the total expense ratios above. The Manager resarves the right to modify this tatal
Expense rabioat any tims.

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, FirstCanbbean Internatiznal Bankand Trust Company (Cayman) Limited fhe Master Fund Trustee] s enti-
tiad to be paid out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up to 522,500 per annu m subject 1o an annweal review whers the fee may be incmased
forvarious reasons such as inflation without Unitholder consant as long a5 the fees ane still considensed to be at normal commercial rates,

Such feeswill accrue dally and be paid quarterly in arrears, The Master Fund Trustés shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pockat
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Fund's assets

Pursuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, MaplesFS Umited (the Feeder Fund Trustes) i entitiad to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a
fee of up b 0.02% por annum on the average daily Net AssetValue of the Feader Fund up to 560,000 per annem and subject to 3 515,000 mdnimum
paryear, Such fees will aocrue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears, The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pockst
expanses incurred by the Feader Fund Trustee in mlation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund's assets

{b) Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custedian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Stroet Bank and Trust Company (the Custodian), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up to 0.10% par
annuem on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daly and paid manthly in arrears. The Manager shall also pay o

the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.10% par annum on the sverage monthly Net AssetValue of the Feader Fund
accrued dally and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of- pockat ecpenses payable to the Custodian outofeach
funds assats

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

TheCustodian has appointed State Strest Cayman Trust Company, Led, (State Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act s sub-acoounting agant
ir relation to the funds. For adminisrative services performad by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
out of the asssts of the Master Fund a fee up to 557,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net AssetValuz of the Master Fund. Addstional
manthly perquote pricing fees will appdy. This feewill acorye daily and be paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shall decharge masonable out-of-
packet axpenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent outof the Master Fund's assate. The Manager thall also pay the Sub-Accounteng Agent oul
ofthe astets of the Feader Fund an administrative fee of approximately 55,000 per annum plus monthly per quote pricing fees. Thes fee &8 Includad
with the Cushedy fees on the Staternents of comprehensme income {loss), andwill accrue datly and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall
discharge reasonatre out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Feeder Fund's assels

The funds may enter nto expense offset arangements with State Stréetwhercby State Streat's fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances, Far the years ended April 30, 2022 and April 30, 2021, the funds' expenses ware not reduced a5 a resull of expense offset arrangements
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Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Cltibank Eutope ph (the Transher Agent), out of the assets ofthe funds, a fee based on the valume of transfer agent activity,
subgact to 2 $300,000 minimum per annumon the Master Fund and a 575,000 minimum per annum on the Feeder Fund, accrued datly and paid
manthly in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of- pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assats.

Other Expenses
In addition, aach respective fund bears all other expenses incidental to its operations and business, mcleding, amongst ethers all compliance

coats and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; interest and commitment fees on loans and debt balances, any iIncome,
withholding or other taves; cost of communication with Unithaldars and prospective imestors

Each fund may be required to pay subscription and redampbion charges in connection with investments in other investment companies. Each
fund may be requined ta pay brokerage commissions in relation to portfolio transactons.

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

The Manager voluntanly reimbursed the Master Fund $119,854 (2021 55,135) for trading errors which occurted durning the reporting penod. The
reimbursemant by the Manager of such amounts had no material impact on total return

11. MARKET CONDITIONS

In the normak course of business, the Master Fund trades financialinstruments and enters into financial transactions whera risk of potential loss
exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the contracting party fo the transaction to perfoom (credit rek), The Master Fund may
be exposed bo additional credit risk that an insttution orother entitywith which the Master Fund has unsattied or open transactions will default
a5 discussed in previous notes.

On July 27, 2017, the United Kingdoms Financlal Conduct Authonty (FCAT) which regulates LIBOR, announcad its intention fo ceass compebling
banks to provide the quaotations needed o sustain LIBOR after 2021, ICE Benchmark Administration, the administrator of LUBOR, ceased publi-
caton of most LIBOR sattings on a representative basks atthe end of 2021 and s expected to cease publication of a majonty of .5, dollar UBOR
sethings on a fepresentative basis after Juna 30, 2023 In addition, global regulators have announced that, with limited excephions, no mew LIBOR-
based contracts should be entered into after 2021 LIBOR has histarically been a comman banchmark interest rate index used to make adjust-
ments ko variable-rate loans. It ks used throughout global banking and financial industrias to determine interest rates for avariety of financial
instruments and borrowing arrangemants. Actions by regulators have resulted in the establshment of alternative reference rates to LIBOR in most
miajor currencies, Various financial industry groups have been planning for the transition away from UBGR, buk there are obstaches to converting
certain longer-term securties and ransactions to new reference rates. Markets are devaloping slowly and questions around liqusdity in these
rates and how to appropriately adjust these rates to mitigate any economic value transfer at the time of transibion remain asignificant concam
Meither the effect of the transition process nor its ulbimate success can yet be known., The transition process might kead to increased volatility and
ilBsquidity In markets that rely on LIBGR to determing interestrates. ltcould also kead to a reduction in the value of some UBOR-based Investments
and reduce the effectiveness of related transactions, such as hedges. While some LIBOR-bated instruments may contemplate ascenarnowhere
LIBQR 15 no langer available by providing for an aRternative rate-setting methodology, not all may have such provisions and there may be signifi-
cant uncertainty regarding the effectiveness of amy such alternative methodologies, Since the wsefulness of LIBOR as a benchmark could deterio-
rate during the fransition period, thesa effects could oocur at any tima.

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continue to expenience significant volatility resuting from
the spread of avirus known as COVID-19 The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in travel and border resiricbions, quarantines, supply chain
diruptions, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty. The effects of COVID-19 have adversely affectad, and may continue to
adversaly affect the global econcmy, the economies of certain naticons and individual issuers, all of which may negatively iImpact the Master
Fund's performance.
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Th foliowing Lables summanze any dernvatives, repuichase agreements and reverse repurchase agreemants, &t the end of the repoeting
period, thatane subject to an enforceabde master netting apreemient o senilar agreement. Forsecunties lending transachons or bo roweng
transactions assocatedwith securities sold short, i any, see Mote 3. For financial reporting purpases, the Master Fund does not offset financial
assets and financial Babilities that are subjectto the master natting agreemants in the Statements of inancial position.

g :
= ] s

i} |3 | W | & | 3

: L : i
April 30, 2022 a3 a E z 8E
Assats
Caermtrally chaanisd inler et ra i Swap contracts - 4= SHAT1 67 = -
OTC Tota return swap contracts™ — - - - —
OTC Credit gdafault contracts - probection sold™ . - - - - -
DTC Credit Safault contr 32E5 - protection purchased™ - | = = - | =
Fuatares confracts' = - - o &
Foreard currency contracts' 13,404 12552 = — 134,109
Forward premium swap ophon confracs® | 7emsamm = = = TR4G 045
Furchased Swap cpliors™ . 18054 - - - -
Reparchase agreements™ ' - - - im0 -
Total Assets | 58,007,736 518,952 SBATLSET 53293000 57,973,154
Liabilitias: '
Centrally clearad interest rate swap confractst - - 1931350 - -
OTC Total return swap contracts™ [ - - - - -
OTC Credit default coniracts - protection sold™ Ea6 44l - - - -
O Credit default contracts - protection purchased™ - - - - -
Flsharies eontracts = = - - | =
Forerd ourrency contracrs' | Lazg | 4096 | - | - | 5,261
Forward premium swa p opion contracts” HEROTG - - - 13036526
WriTlen swap oplicns® [ 799,430 = = = 3511405
Reverse repurchase agresments i = . = 5
Total Liabilities | 510,978,044 SI40% 57330350 §= 515851312
Tatal Financial and Derivative Net Assets | saT03a8)  §(E5148 S240EIT 52T 293000 S{T,80,058)
Total collateral recetved (pledged) s | 5{2,970,248) 3= 5— 521390000 | S{TEVIASE)
Mat aenaurt : 5= 5(85,144) 5240617 $— {202,560
Con rdle firand K LTS fece ved finchucing TEA Commitmments) ™ 4= L G e e
Cordrodiedorsh cobeteral recesed fincluding TEA comenitments)™ G- f= - G= G-
Uncontreled ecllteraleeined. ' ' 4= s i— | smEmesl 4=
Colicera (pincged) fnelucing TEA commements”™ | tpmoaey | 5= | S— | umlm0Y) | SETTAN

* Excludes premeumms, ifany. mchsded in Financial assets andyfor Finanoal babiliBes atfair valwe throu gh profit or loss on the Statements of firancial position.
= included in Finandial assats andfor Fnancial labilities at fair value through profit or |o55 on theStatemeants of financlal position
Tadctions collaters may be radguined from Gorlan brokers based on indsdus sgreemens.
* Cowbredd by P SIE LN dgredment Nobe 8,
= prry cer-collateralization of total frarwal and derivative net Sise1s |5 mot shown, Colater sl m.ay clede amounts rdated 1o unsetied agreements.
# inchudies current day's vananon margin anly a3 reported on the Statements of hnencial posttion, which 15 et collateralized Collateral pladged for indtal margin on fuhares
CORTrEcs and centrally clisned Padp contracts, which iz nod indluckid in thi table alowe. Amounted 10 5949, 810 and 53,108,455 nEspectiviy.
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- E -

Jd =% = & ] é o -
g2 i3 3 i 255 & - £s
i 3 | i 237 a5 8 2%
§§ s 3 S5 B g g: 23 ik
53 5E 8 g3 &3 &3 SE

G= G h= G- = L= G- G
L0069 1L6ET.276 - 1077223 - - 1,557 Al 44,78

= - - - - - x99 -

- - - 218204 11543 44973 - —-

- - 624527 0096 4] - 2,959,357 - -

- - = 56 06 - LTET 53T = -
51,320,085 SLELT2TE SE24 823 53,851 624 $23.54%9 54 TT1,T6T £2,105, 703 ca44 TE2
435 671 31T RS - - LT ] —- - 1EFT 343 425030

- 11012 - 136 546 - 4455 — -

- —_ 419,757 TEEIEED - 3365013 - -

N Ax L La4 155 - 4272848 - -
54318671 53,928,635 2415757 56,558 998 f= 57,642,313 51677342 S436 332
5(2,945 607} §(2,311,353} 5204 866 §{2,707,374) $23.549 5(2,870,545) 5432361 S(181,450)
S(2,M5502) 52,311,389  S204,866 (2,675,508} $= 52790599  $300,000 $(181,450)
5— 5— 5 S1468 523549 sreses)  s132,361 $—

5 5 5— 6 3 5 i 5=

f— i— 280,000 - G— - £00,000 f—

- - e - §— 5= 5 S

3013, 158 2R.33EE10 G- S2ATES0E 5= Sl TR0 345858 S35
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: ; : H £
$2 - : 8 :
- g2 & E 2 3
§35 o 2 2
5 i k-] S g
33z ﬁ i3 gé 8 £3 23 T
- - = - - 5= = 48,171,967
1,042 168 - - — - — - T3R5
- - - - - - - 142 10
263515 467356 FET4T 116,121 35058 - 41445 414110
&LE 923 — - 1,232 ERE 4 566, 35T 2,153,767 - TAOAT AT
2.303.80] 1538 8 - - LEMESS - - 2510559
- - - — - - - 27293 000
54,078,817 52 405,744 SUETAT S1348,807 56,430,358 §1,153,767 541 445 $91,515374
- — - _ - - - 7931350
PNk - = = - = = 251,036
1425 557 - - - - = - 1B 2535
.01 13300 193, 217 562998 1340400 - 211 A4 40
712040 —_ - 4] BE]1 2EIEE4E LM ET2 - IT4T2 479
3228280 3307403 - ELIM ganate - - 1T A%0 623
55615423 53,400,703 2193207 51,386,258 54,804,732 51,243 872 5608 576500461
$(1,545 506} £(994,959) STT4 256 §aT 451} 51,616,212 5909895 540,843 57,004,813
£(1,275 857} {861,714} STT4 356 S{3TAB1} 51,500,000 809,895 5—
£{170,535) 5{133 245} 5= = 5116232 55— 540,843
f— t— L2 484 b §— SRATEER §— £1.735.052
= b= - G- S1.500,000 480,000 G- 42,160,000
— = h— — - - = SITAZEREL
1378 56T SBE1.T1E) G S13LATY) - G 5= S TEL BT
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E -
5

: % 3 i <

: : ag : Z

z 5 EF X 5
April 30, 2021 23 : 3% £ S
Assats
Centrallycleared inferest rate saap contracts® | i $291,586 5| e
DT Total retum saap contracts™ — 49,378 — - BEET
Centrally clearsd Wlal return swap coniracis® - - TE4 504 - =
OTC Cradit defaull contracts - protection sold™ =] = = = =
OTC Credit defaull contracts = protec fon purchased™ = = = = =
Fubures conmracts* - - - - -
Forvatd turrency Contracts? 150,045 i | — | — | 1301
Foraand paami um swap op Eon contrac ts? 3536653 . 137088 — - 1003711
Purchasedswapcptions™ Tapgman | MEH: | — = Cmmz
Furchased options® ™ — - — — —
Repurchase greements™ - | - — | 4pmo0000 | -
Total Assets 54,173,441 SS68.674 51,006,470 540800000 51183341
Liabilitiss
Centrallycleared interest rate swap contracts! - - 474,001 - -
O Total retarm swag comirasts™ 3454 8602 | - | - | B
Centrallycieared fotal relurn swap contracts’ - — 675,991 - -
OTC Creit defaull contracts - protecion solg™ E56, 152 - - = =
OTC Credit default contracts ~protection parchased™ - - - - -
Fiahures eantractss ' = =1 =i =1 =
Forward currency contractss 14941 | 5862 | =53] =) 185,812
Fiofward S0rn| LA SWap OTOR Contr s 15 ZIETAIE | 107316 - - | E57.397
Wi Tten swap options* STIS54 | 564 - | - LW
wiritten options” - - - - -
Total Liabilities 54,549,968 | SLM0B030 51,150,062 §— 52,153 4%
Total Financial and Darivative Het Assets saTesid) S5383S6 S(T3SST) | 540800000 5{370,081)
Tatal inancialinstruments received {pledged)™: SI54,000)  5I514,000) S— | $40,800,000 s{aT0,081)
Total cash collateral raceived (pledged)™t $= | 5= $= | = | 5=
Met amount (122,524} 5{24,356) (73, 592) 5= 5—
Controlled framod instrurnents recered (including TEA commiments)™ G— | g A— §— -
Controlled cash coloterol received finchiding TEA commitmentsy™ b= = = = f—
Uinertreded coimeraireceived g | o | 5~ | ta1g1E000 | P
Collnerai fpledged nduding TBA commiEmentsr™ Ssa000 | SElsN00 | = | §= | 30052000

* Exchudes premiums, if any, includad in Financial assets andfor Finanda labdites at farvalue throwgh proftorboss on e Statements of fnandal positon

= inchudied in Finendcidl 55sts andfor Financial Babilicies at Tair walue thiough profit of Lods on thie STanements of rancial position

T Addinonal coll ateral may be required om o tain brokars based onindnadual agreements.

* Cowered by master netting agreemant (Note &,

= Ay over-collater gization of [otal Bnandal and demsaive net 355845 13 not shown Collatersl may indlude amourts related 1o unsetiled agresments.

*inchades current day s wanakion mangin ety a5 repod i on e Statem ants of Bnandial pod tion, whichis not collateralized, Collater 8 pledged for irntaal margin on
fubures contracts and centr ally clearad swap conitr acts, which isnotinchuded in the table above, am ounted to SB08.000 and $10 280,000, respectivaly
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- E - 5
[¥]
o n kL o4 B
gy 23 g ix 237 as 2z 23
5% s =% B S 23 ik
53 £ H 3E 833 a3 28 it
G G H= G G L G G
— 7114 — 23,194 — 4510 15,344 —_
104 426 7 AEE 955 - 02 B4E —_ - 21X E1% 61,272
- 15458 - 536, TR LG B 98,288 - —_
- - = 35,135 - 1 TRE 782 = -
- - - 2215333 - 1727900 - —
= - = = = 702,600 - -
51,246,428 52,485 567 fm $3,903, 185 106,480 54,320,078 | 52,141,469 5661272
- 16,723 I8 17435 — G0 2038 —
6,706,003 5554 558 - 4,863,573 - - T.18355% 1117683
- —_ - - - - 19203 —
- BE 543 - 204,130 156 154 182115 - —
- - - 280,373 - 2ENITL - =
- - - 1558078 - 5,042 B3 - -
- - - - - 443 455 = -
56,706,019 45,637,524 5189 57,063,589 196,154 58,215,895 57,204,800 51,117,683
sEASa SN B3,14835T) (388 S(3,160404)  SIBTLY  SR,I0581T) | HE06331) S(SEALY
55,423,000} 503,149 35T} S 503, 160 404} {59,714} 5(3,905,817) S5 063,33]) SE386 0000
G S G S G G §= S
SAT.S93) = e S= S= G= b= Z(To 410
G L L G G L G G-
= = b= = G = G b=
= = 4= 5= i= = = L
%6 420 00 SL3.2T 2000 G S 258 00 00006 44 114, 0000 G507 20000 G186, 000
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: i : i | i
8% - : 8 .
555 i3 a2 g 9 2 Fy
5 i =] b = g k] E’
522 Eg i3 gé 8 £3 23 Tota
5 5 §— — 5— 5— 5— $23LE86
= = = — = — = 108,227
= = 2 = - - = TR4.584
1005339 - = - = = - 8,408,456
- - - - - - - 306
180,170 L 0EE 750,530 06,236 150532 - BL03R 2,254 18T
413502 = - 452915 2068553 £81755 = 19,312,093
4042713 - - 295 360 A48 852 - - GETEeATE
- - - —_ - - - 02 ELD
- - - — - - - A0 200000
5,641, T24 210,026 STED 530 SR44.5001 52 857,827 £581,TSE 581,018 £73,338 814
i = = - = - = 474071
10,133 - = e = - = ]
- = - - -~ = - 675,991
€ 508,080 - - - - - - 32 589570
En XX - = - = B 19,203
323942 245 720 624500 270,959 358 18T - E32 285 2217848
303,738 - = 139751 L.220.907 16T = 5,048,445
4, 157411 - — G139 668 B35645 - — 14,652 443
-~ ~ -~ - - - - 4472485
511,297,501 5245780 624,590 51070378 32,414,735 5302676 5136385 $61218.633
(5,656,077} {235, Tad) 5125 540 T8 8T} 243,008 $369,077 5(57,347) £12,120,181
5(5,656,077) SZIET4 $0011,000) $1125,877) 5= 5 £(57,247)
5= 5= 5= 5= 5243008 536,077 5=
5= 5= 5236540 - 5— 5— 5=
3 - e . =K g i -
= - 4= L £350,000 400,000 - ST50,000
5 g g &~ g 5= 5— $41516,000
545 833.000) S282000) 21110000 $(263.000) §— 5= SUSLA00) | $(30,064000)
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13. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statemants wiare approved by the Trustaes on August 11, 2022

14. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

Thene were ng significant pest-Statemants ol financial posibion events throwgh August 11, 2022

Putnam Diversified Incoms Trust Funds {Cayman) 39
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2022
296,490 41,102
1,096 152
295,394 40,950
16,842,930
36,840,395
5.44 754
5.53 767
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2016 12 65,195,828 90
2017 12 22,058,670 31
2018 12 14,992,655 21
2019 12 11,125,913 15
2020 12 24,433,136 34
2021 12 13,494,763 19
2022 11,901,340 16

100
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1937

2022 1,690 23.4 196

2022
2022

295,678,213
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2020 12 31

2022
138.63

31

23

25

193
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
139,216,557 19,299,591 122,585,635 16,994,047
2,537,639 351,793 637,244 88,341
2,926,384 405,685 1,360,165 188,560
34 5 32 4
144,680,614 20,057,074 124,583,076 17,270,952
20,033,128 2,777,193 17,171,529 2,380,489
8,634,188 1,196,957 7,414,104 1,027,817
15,821,581 2,193,346 15,863,976 2,199,223
10 1,449,574 200,954 1,576,815 218,594
28,158 3,904 10,819 1,500
118,565,068 16,436,675 93,537,099 12,967,048
26,834,562 3,720,075 31,681,486 4,392,004
191,366,259 26,529,104 167,255,828 23,186,675
(46,685, 645) (6,472,031) (42,672,752) (5,915,724)
794,883 110,195 856,655 118,758
(47,480,528) (6,582,226) (43,529, 407) (6,034,482)
11
(202,142) (28,023) (4,880) (677)
(202,142) (28,023) (4,880) (677)
(47,682,670) (6,610,249) (43,534,287) (6,035,158)
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2,894,563 401,273 5,748,800 796,956

14,725,945 2,041,458 12,099,212 1,677,314

221,474 30,703 12,084,001 1,675,205

660,999 91,634 828,272 114,823

7,327 1,016 169,591 23,510

12,100 1,677 16,390 2,272

18,522,408 2,567,761 30,946,266 4,290,081

3,097,745 429,440 1,720,781 238,552

1,663,195 230,569 2,631,970 364,870

630,087 87,349 1,036,107 143,636

462,975 64,182 686,520 95,172

5,854,002 811,540 6,075,378 842,230

4,727,110 655,319 (1,051,845) (145,817)

521,342,074 72,273,652 491,640,841 68,156,170

(505,751,648)  (70,112,351)  (458,271,120)  (63,530,125)

11 (7.649,130) (1,060,399) (7,446,988) (1,032,376)
12,668,406 1,756,221 24,870,888 3,447,851

18,522,408 2,567,761 30,946,266 4,290,081
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12 31
(1,051,845) (145,817) 491,640,841 68,156,170  (458,271,120) (63,530,125)  (7,446,988)  (1,032,376) 24,870,888 3,447,851
(29,701,233) (4,117,482) 29,701,233 4,117,482
35,480,188 4,918,618 35,480,188 4,918,618
(202,142) (28,023) (202,142) (28,023)
(47,480,528) (6,582,226) (47,480,528)  (6,582,226)
4,727,110 655,319 521,342,074 72,273,652 (505,751,648) (70,112,351)  (7,649,130)  (1,060,399) 12,668,406 1,756,221
(736,767) (102,138) 433,924,344 60,154,932 (414,741,713) (57,495,644)  (7,442,108)  (1,031,699) 11,003,756 1,525,451
741,100 102,739 (741,100) (102,739)
(58,457,597) (8,103,977) 58,457,597 8,103,977
57,401,419 7,957,559 57,401,419 7,957,559
(4,880) (677) (4,880) (677)
(43,529,407) (6,034,482) (43,529,407)  (6,034,482)
(1,051,845) (145,817) 491,640,841 68,156,170  (458,271,120) (63,530,125)  (7,446,988)  (1,032,376) 24,870,888 3,447,851
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(46,685,645) (6,472,031) (42,672,752) (5,915,724)
(794,883) (110,195) (856, 655) (118,758)
162,264 22,495 (155,817) (21,601)
4,290 595 6,112 847
209,452 29,036 238,564 33,072
(2,626,733) (364,144) (865,697) (120,012)
11,862,527 1,644,502 (8,599,841) (1,192,196)
(42,179) (5.847) 26,919 3,732
1,376,964 190,889 907,377 125,790
(968,775) (134,301) (3,012,432) (417,613)
(11,906) (1,651) 22,412 3,107
(406,020) (56,287) 732,375 101,529
(37,920,644) (5,256,939) (54,229, 435) (7,517,827)
(204,391,072) (28,334,734) (218,650,178)  (30,311,474)
239,871,260 33,253,353 276,051,597 38,269,033
(211,639) (29,340) (198,227) (27,480)
35,268,549 4,889,279 57,203,192 7,930,079
(202,142) (28,023) (4,880) (677)
(2,854,237) (395,683) 2,968,877 411,575
5,748,800 796,956 2,779,923 385,381
2,894,563 401,273 5,748,800 796,956
1,039,088 144,049 288,109 39,941
28,162 3,904 10,819 1,500
29,701,233 4,117,482 58,457,597 8,103,977
741,100 102,739
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AUM

12,668,406

IFRS

CovID-19
COVID-19

02110

2021 12 31
24,870,889

1ASB
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COVID-19

CovID-19

COVID-19 COVID-19

IFRS

12
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two-sided markets

2021 2020 12 31

2021 12 31
14,947,419 14,947,419
14,947,419 14,947,419
4,760,940 4,760,940
4,760,940 4,760,940
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2020 12 31
24,183,213 24,183,213
24,183,213 24,183,213
4,352,751 4,352,751
4,352,751 4,352,751

2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31 IFRS
2021
2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31 36
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2021

2020 12 31 4,290 6,112

AUM

AUM
2021 2020 12 31
7,674,745 8,836,552
2021 2020 12 31

AUM 24,951,801,236

28,547,400,944
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2021 2020 12 31
2,926,384 1,360,165
2021 2020 12 31
14,725,945 12,099,212
2021 2020 12 31
1,652,335 1,262,617
2020
11,233,515
2021 2020 12 31
118,565,068 93,537,099
AUM
EIP

EIP
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301.7701-3
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
probable threshold
IFRS
2021 12
31 2020 12 31
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AOCL

AOCL

AOCL

IFRS 16
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IFRS IAS 39 | 2021 IFRS 1AS
39 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IAS 12 2021 1ASB IAS 12
2023
I1AS 2021 12 1ASB IAS
2023
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1AS IFRS 2021 12 1ASB 1AS
IFRS
significant
material

2023
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2021 12 31
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(1,478) (100,400) (388,182) (490,060)
5,818 10,551 21 16,390
(1,043) (3,247) (4,290)
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(2,521) (103,647) (388,182) (494, 350)
4,775 7,304 21 12,100

2020 12 31
7,296 131,506 388,203 527,005
(435) (117,708) (386,360) (504,503)
6,861 13,798 1,843 22,502
(20,555) (20,555)
(1,043) (3,247) (1,822) (6,112)
20,555 20,555
7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450
(1,478) (100, 400) (388,182) (490,060)
5,818 10,551 21 16,390
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
11,867,221
128,624 131,104
92,850 85,676
221,474 12,084,001
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
265,580 223,401
395,419 604,871
660,999 828,272
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
444,435 667,623
18,540 18,898

462,975 686,520
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,036,107 303,732
632,619 1,012,472
(1,039,088) (288,109)
449 8,012
630,087 1,036,107
2021 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
148,364
7,327 21,227
7,327 169,591
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
632,619 1,012,472
632,619 1,012,472
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
162,264 (155,817)
162,264 (155,817)
794,883 856,655
2021 2020 12 31
2021
2020 12 31 2021

2020 12 31
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2021 2020 12 31 17
2021 12 31
598,024 6,847 604,871
(204,303) (5,149) (209,452)
393,721 1,698 395,419
2020 12 31
203,600 11,841 215,441
627,994 627,994
(233,570) (4,994) (238,564)
598,024 6,847 604,871
2021 2020 12 31
2021
2020 12 31 239,826

208,662
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2022
2023
2024

2021
2022
2023

2021 12 31

234,857
233,017

467,874
(23,439)

444,435

2020 12 31

243,131
239,382
237,507

720,020
(52,397)

667,623

2021 12 31

213,968
230,467

444,435

2020 12 31

214,624
452,999

667,623

180/259

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 31 ULC PIC ULC
6,740,991 PIC ULC
2021 2020 12 31 4,727,110 1,051,845
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
PIM
21,498,340 18,136,072
U.S. PUSH
3,758,949 (4,221,434)
PRM 3,305,072 2,763,192
UK
PIL 2,321,500 3,105,429
PSERV 237,813 196,421
P1JCO 226,499 260,458
PIA

162,475 335,491
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PIIL (235,706) (631,845)
PIC ULC (12,612,375) (9,181,330)
PFTC (13,935, 457) (11,814,299)
4,727,110 (1,051,845)
2021 2020 12 31 AUM
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
10,989,339 10,265,071
AUM 4,446,620,960 4,593,415,714
2021 2020 12 31 1,332,985
303,260
2021 2020 12 31
81 82
2020
2021 12 31

2020 12 31 40,367
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2021 PIC ULC PIC ULC
PIC ULC
PAC
PFTC PIIL
AUM
PFTC PIC ULC PIIL
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
90,073,360 77,665,437
90,073,360 77,665,437
3,885,538 2,696,962
13,438,748 13,463,112
46,422 80,302
17,370,708 16,240,376
72,702,652 61,425,061
2021
2020 12 31 2,926,384 1,360,165
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2021 2020 12 31
118,565,068 93,537,099
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
PIM 88,230,747 67,745,266
PIL 10 12,453,758 13,186,906
PRM 10,398,272
2021
P1JCO 2020 2,922,206 4,001,947
AUM
PIIL 1,764,998 2,339,858
PFTC 2.28 1,535,155 1,304,802
2.28
2021 AUM
PIC ULC 2020 379,560 4,064,517
2021 10
PIA 2020 880,372 893,803
118,565,068 93,537,099
AUM AUM 32.5

AUM  20.25

2021
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2021 12 31
29,701,233
2020 12 31
741,100
58,457,597
401
2021 2020
12 31 366,989 326,256
PUSH
2021 2020 12 31
1,766,696 1,375,346
2021 2020 12 31
2,382,833 2,400,863
EIP

EIP
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EIP
IFRS EIP
EIP
EIP
2021 2020
12 31 2,592,294 1,337,653
2021
2020 12 31 682,675 506,658
2021 12 31
8,705,101 3.39 2021
2020 12 31

334,351
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
470,896 13.79 323,39 16.07
105,164 16.54 199,180 11.50
(216,201) 14.42 (54,100) 18.90
11,848 15.05
(21,684) 13.32 (9,426) 15.92

12 31
338,175 14.27 470,896 13.79
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

428,008 416,543
757,396 601,773
2,369,616 2,277,464
112,643 38,687

3,667,663 3,334,467
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2021 2020 12 31 26,834,562
31,681,486
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
PUSH 24,234,802 20,668,138
PRM 1,975,014 1,703,939
PSERV 867,934 764,951
PRM 3,284,563
PRM DCIO 5,745,325
PRM (243,188) (485,430)
26,834,562 31,681,486
PRM PRM DCIO 2021
10
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
414,148 457,671
235,307 356,776
204,303 233,711
92,697 197,077
40,367
4,290 6,112
5,149 4,998
493,680 280,103
1,449,574 1,576,815
11
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(7,446,988) (7,442,108)
(202,142) (4,880)

(7,649,130)

(7,446,988)
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CDO

2020 27
10

2021 2020 12 31
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2021 2020 12 31
300,000,000
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2027
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
467,874 234,857 233,017
2020 12 31
2026
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
849,711 286,580 282,569 280,562
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2021 2020 12 31
833,000
PAC
2021 2020 12 31
3,940,000
2022 26
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STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years ended December 31,

In LSS 2021 2020
REVENUE
Investment advisory fees, net 5139216557 5122585 635
Performance fees 2.537,639 637,244
Service fee revenme (Mote @) 2,926,384 1,360,165
Met investment meome and other income 34 iz
Total revenue 144,680,614 $124,583,076
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and benefits £20.033,128 217,171,529
Professional and external services 8.634,188 TA414,104
Diealer cormimissions 15,821,581 15,863,976
Other operating expenses (Mote 10) 1449 574 1,576,815
Financing charges 28,158 10,819
Service fee expense (MNote 9) 118,565,068 93,537,000
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net (Mote &) 26,834,562 31,681 486
Tolal operating expenses 191,366,259 $167,255,828
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (46,685 645) (42,672.752)
Income tax expense (MNote 7) To4.883 RB56,655
NET LOSS (47A80,528) (43,529.407)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAX (Note 11):
Items that may be recdassified subsequently to income or loss
Unrealized foreign exchange loss on translation of foreign operations, net (5202,142) (54,8800
Ttems that will not be reclassified to income or loss - —
Total other comprehensive loss for the yvear, net of income tax (202,142 (. 5800
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (547,682,670) (543.534.28T)

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC

BALANCE SHEETS

I LSS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 2)
Accneed investment advisory fees receivable, net (Mote 2)
Other receivables (MNote <)
Other assets (Mote 5)
Deferred tax assets (MNote 7)
Capital assets, net (Note 3)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Liabilities
Accrued compensation and employ ee benefits
Accounts pavable and acorued expenses
Current tax liability (Mote 7)
Other liabilities (Note 6)
Total liabilities

Member's equity
Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net (Mote 9)
Contrabuted sumplus
Accurmulated deficit
Acouwrnulated other comprehensive loss (MNote 117
Total member’s equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 31,
2021 2020
52894 563 85,748,800
14, 725945 12,099,212
221474 12,084,001
G460, 900 228272
7327 165,501
121000 16,390
18,522 408 530,046,266
£3,007,745 §1.720,781
1,663,195 2,631,970
630,087 1,036,107
462,975 586,520
55,854,002 86,075,378
$4,727.110 (81,051 845)
521342074 491,640,841
(505,751,648) (458,271,120
(76491300 (7,446, 988)
12,668,406 24,870,858
518,522 408 530,046, 266
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
I LSS 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loag before income taxes (546,685 645) (S342.672.752)
Income tax expense (794 883) (856,655)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flows used in operating activities:
Deferred income taxes 162,264 (155817)
Diepreciation and amortization of capital assets 4,200 6,112
Mon-cash lease expense 200 452 238 564
(Increase)/decrease n operating asseis:
Accrued mvestment advisory fees receivable, net (2,626.733) (B65,607)
Other receivables 11,862,527 (8,500.841)
Other assets (42,179 26,919
Increase/{decreasze) in operating liabilities:
Accrued compensation and emplovee benefitz 1,376,264 07,377
Accomts pay able and acerued expenses (268,775 (3,012,432)
Other liabilities (11,59046) 22412
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (06, 0200 732,375
Met cash used in operating activities (37,920, 6440 (54,229.435)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates (MNote 9)

(204,391,072)

(218,650,178)

Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates (Maote @) 239,871,260 276,051,597

Payments on principal portion of lease [ability (211,639 (198,227)
Met cash provided by financmg activities 35,268,549 57,203,192

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (202,142) {4, BR0)
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2854.23T 25968 877

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,748 800 2,779,923

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $2.804.563 £5, 748, 800

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:

Foreign income tax paid (Nate 7) 1,039,088 F288, 109

Interest paid 328,162 £10,819

Supplementary Non-Cash Flow Information from Financing Activithes:

Contribution-in-kind received from Parent (Note %) £29,701,233 858.457,597
Dividend-in-kind paid to the Parent (Note 9) T £741, 100

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staterments,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “*Company™ or “PAC™"), including its Singapore Branch, is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pulnam Advisory Holdings 1L, LLC ("PAH 1"}, and is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putnam” ), the latter of which is an indirectly
majority-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (“Lifecc™). The Comparny’s ultimate parent company is
Power Corporation of Canada. The Company is incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of
America. The registered office and principal place of business is located at 100 Federal Street, Boston,
Massachuseiis, 02110, United States of America. The U.S. dollar (8) is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to institutional clients. In
connection with providing these services, the Company receives an investment advizory fee, which is based
upon the clients” negotiated fee rate and the average assets under management. Company revenue is largely
dependent on the total value and composition of assels under management (* AUM™), which include domestic
and imernational equity and debt assets (the "Company Funds™) accordingly, fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of AUM affect revenues and results of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Notes 2 and 9.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not be indicative of the financial position or the resulis of operations that would have
existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated compary.

Economic dependency

The financial statements have been appropriately prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to
a going concern, however, the continuing operations of the Company are reliant upon the ongoing support of
the Parent. The Company has an ending Member's equity of $12.668,406 and 324 870,889 at December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), as issued by the Infemational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"). The
policies set ot below were consistently applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise noted, 1f
applicable, the Company will adopt, or has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of
new or amended accounting standards that are relevant to the business as described in Changes in Aecounting
Policies within this Note,

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to result in uncertainty in global financial markets and the economic
environment in which the Company operates. The resulis of the Company reflect management’s judgements
regarding the impact of prevailing market conditions,

Global financial markets experienced significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus
that can cause a disease known as COVID-19, The pandemic has resulted in travel and border restrictions,
quarantines, supply chain dismptions, lower consumer demand and general market uncenainty throughout the
year.

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic contines to be unknown at this time, and most of our
employees are currenily working remotely, with only a small number in the office each business day. The
Company has not experienced any significant disruptions during the pandemic period due to operational
issues, loss of communication capabilities, technology failure, and cyber-attacks. While the Company, in

=
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

conjunction with its Parent, is continuously monitoring and evaluating the impact of COVID-19, the extent to
which COVID-19 affects our business, results of operations and financial condition will depend on future
developments that are highly imcertain.

War in Ukraine

The current conflict in Ukraine has led to general market volatility and a surge in oil and energy prices amid
supply concerns. If the conflict escalates or persists for a long perod of time we expect further volatility in
financial markets, reduced economic growth and higher inflation.

The Company continues to monitor both simations closely to support decision making during an uncernain
period.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make significant
judgments involving estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of assets and liabilities a1 the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of reverme and expenses
during the reporting period. Although some uncertainty is inherent in these judgments and estimates,
management believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and areas where significant judgments have been made are listed below
and discussed thronghout the notes to the financial statements inchuding:

=  In the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, the Company's management exercises
judgment in the determination of fair value inputs (Note 2).

* The Company operates within various tax jurisdictions where management judgments and estimates
are required when interpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations, and legislation in the determination
of the Company’s tax provisions and the carrying amounts of its tax assets and liabilities (Note 7).

*  Legal and other provisions are recognized resulting from past events which, in the judzment of
management, have resulted in a probable outflow of economic resources which would be passed to a
third-party to seftle the obligation. Management uses judgment to evaluate the possible oulcomes and
risks in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Note 12).

= The Company uses estimates to determine certain components of share-based amortization expense
including the share price and forfeiture estimates (Note 9),

= Mamagement uses judgment in determining the incremental borrowing rate used to discount lease
payments based on the applicable reference rate, coupled with a credit spread and lease specific
adjustments (Note 2.

The significant accounting policies are as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are readily
convertible into cash. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair value hierarchy:
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 1 utilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 2 utilize observable inputs other than Level 1 unadjusted
quoted market prices. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were oblained from pricing services. The
pricing =service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark vields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes,
issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and reference data.

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 3 wiilize one or more significant inpuis that are not based
on observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls
has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, The Compary’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in
its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability,

The following table presents information abowt all of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on both a recoming and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and indicates the
fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair valoe:

December 31, 2021

Asseis measired eq Jir valie Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other financial instruments "' — 14,947,419 — 14,947 419
Total Mnancial assets 5— £14.947,419 35— 314,947,419
Liabilities mecsured o fir velue

Other financial instruments ©' 4,760,940 - 4,760,940
Total Mnancial liabilities 5 54,760,940 o 4,760,940

December 31, 2020
Assely measied al iy vilue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other financial instruments "' — 24183213 — 24,183,213
Total Minancial assels 5— 524,183,213 5— £24,183.213

Liciittes precoured o8 feir value
Other financial instnnments " = 4,352,751 — 4,352,751
Total Minancial labilities [ §4,352,751 - £4,352,751

L Otheer Bnancaal instruments mched e Acarwed meestment advisory fees receivable, o, Other recavables, Accroed compensation and employes
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses

= Oither frgnoaal mesnments &ne :1|".|.'|.'|I;:|.' reccrded at fur valie and :d;hsi_'qu-,-:lﬂ.}r measired &b arorted codt wEng the affechive rfered rale
method The amartized cot of cther franeal mebrurnents spprosamates ther fir vabue

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers made between any lewvel
categories.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Financial Instruments

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses are classified as being measured at amortized cost, and
initially recorded on the Balance Sheets at fair value and subsequently measured &t amontized cost using the
effective interest rate method, unless short-term, where interest would be insignificant. The carrying values of
Accroed investment advisory fees receivable, net, Other receivables, Accrmied compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates their fair values.

Investment Impairment

In accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instrronents, financial assets were evaluated at December 31, 2021 and
2020, where management used judgement to assess impairment through the expected credit loss model for
each class of financial assets, The Company’s financial assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents,
as well as varous receivable balances, A majority of the Company’s receivables balance at December 31,
2021 and 2020 comsists of accrued investment advisory fees, net owed from third panty entities for services
performed in accordance with investment management agreements. The Company assessed the expected loss
rate on these receivables over a period of 36 months before December 31, 2021 and 2020 and concluded
based wpon historical data that the risk of expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company, The remaining
receivables consist of other receivables, which based on the nature and history of the receivables, the expected
credit loss is insignificant to the Company. Cash and cash equivalents consist of liquid funds held at banks
with high credit-ratings., The probability of defanli for these counterpanties is considered immaterial and
management concluded that the expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company.

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, net are camried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation computed on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, which vary from three to seven years. Capital assets are evaluated for
impaimment on a quarerdy basis. Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, are
removed from the Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
for the net carrying value of the assets. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease.
Depreciation of capital assets for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is 54,290 and 36,112, respectively.

Offsetting and Presentation of Intercompany Recelvables and Payables

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset, and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheets, This
occurs when the Company and its Parend and affiliates owe each other a determinable amount, the Company
has the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by the affiliates, and the Company intends to
et off the amount owed, and the right is enforceable by law by a Putnam Master Netting Agreement. It is the
Company’s policy to include Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net as a component
of Member's equity on the Balance Sheets, as periodic settlement only occurs in the form of a non-cash
accouniing iransaction,

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory fees, net

The Company provides investment advisory services on a daily, monthly, or quarterly basis, The Company
believes the performance obligation for providing investment advisory services is satisfied over time becanse
the customer is receiving and consuming the benefits as they are provided by the Company. Fee amrangements
are based on a contractual percentage applied to the customer’s average or period-end AUM. Fees are eamed
daily as they relate specifically to the services provided in that period, which are distinct from the services
provided in other periods, and are received monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or annwally. Investment
advisory fees are recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, net of expense limits and
rebates of $7,674,745 and 58,836,552 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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The Company, as agent, is the sponsor for a number of structured entities. These structured entities include
institutional funds and other investment products. The nature and purpose of these entities is to provide
investors with a variety of investment opportunities through managed investment strategies. As of December
31, 2021 and 2020, total AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the
Company was $24,951,801,236 and $28,54 7,400,944, respectively.

Performance fees

As additional consideration for the investment advisory services noted above, the Company receives fiees that
vary based on specified performance measures, for example, when a find exceeds a specified benchmark or
contractual hurdle over a contractual performance period or the life of a fund. These fees are eamed once
account retums have exceeded these specified performance measures and are caleulated as a percentage of
account returns. These performance fees are considered variable consideration as the uncertainty is dependent
omn the value of the assets at future points in time as well as meeting a specified compound hurdle rate, both of
which are highly susceptible to factors outside the Company®s influence. Revenues are recognized once it is
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Performance fees recognized in the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss in the comment period are primarily related to performance obligations that have been
satisfied, and management is assured of their realization.

Service fee revenne

The Company receives revenue in accordance with its transfer pricing programs established with centain
affiliates, in order to compensate the Company for investment management services it provides to its
affiliates, which is presented as Service fee revenue in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Mote
9). The Company believes that the performance obligation is satisfied when the operating cosis are incurred,
This revenue is recognized as eamed. Service fee revenue for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is
£2,926,384 and 31,360,165, respectively.

Net i ; 1 other i
Met imvestment income and other income includes interest income and dividend income. This income is
recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as eamed.

Acerued investment advisory fees receivable, net

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net reperted in the Company's Balance Sheets include
514,725,945 and $12,099,212 of recervables from contracts with customers at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Investment advisory fees receivable are shown net of fees waived pursuant to specified
contractual expense limits of the Funds totaling $1.652,335 and $1,262.617 for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. At January 1, 2020, Accmed investment advisory fees receivable, net included
£11,233,515 of receivables from contracts with customers.

Service fee expense

The Company has established transfer pricing programs with certain of its affiliates, all of which result in the
Company paying a service fee expense to the affiliates based on the terms of the programs. These expenses
are presented as Service fee expense on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Mote 9) and are
expensed as incumred. Service fee expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is 5118,565,068
and $93,537,099, respectively.

Certain of these transfer pricing programs are with affiliates for which the Company provides all investment
advisory services related to the affiliates’ third-party clients. In exchange for these services, the Company
collects the contractual revenue and incurs the contractual expenses related to the third-party relationships.
Additional details on these arrangements are described in Note 9.
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Dealer Commissions

Dealer commissions include distribution fees incurred for centain share classes of the Company Funds, which
include costs incurred at the time of the sale as well as recwming commissions based on AUM. Dastribution
fees are presented on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and paid by the Company when due,
pursnant to the contracial agreement.

Share-Based Payments

Share-based payment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to employees
under the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “"EIP") (Note 9), are accounted for as equity-
settled awards. Under this method, compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-
based payment amangements granted based on the grant-date Fair value, which is determined using both the
market and income valuation approaches as outlined in the EIP. The Company uses the graded vesting
method to amortize the awards. The effect of forfeitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing
compensation ¢osl. Share-based compensation is recorded as a component of Compensation and benefits on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Income Taxes

The Company elected to be treated as a distegarded entity pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section
301.7701-3 for federal income tax purposes. Generally, disregarded entities are not subject to entity-level
federal or state income taxation and, as such, the Company is not required to provide for income taxes. The
Company has no U.S. federal or state tax assets or liabilities on its Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2021
and 2020,

The Company’s Singapore branch operation is subject to local tax in the jurisdiction in which it is located.
The related current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed on the Balance Sheets ai December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. and the related cash tax payments are made by the branch.

The Company's tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income taxes to the Company’s branch
operations and reflects the respective the full year result of 2021 and 2020. The Company has not provided for
any U.5. federal or state tax expense. Tax is recogmzed as an expense or benefit in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items that are recognized outside profit or loss {(whether in other comprehensive loss or
directly in equity), in which case the tax is recognized in other components of the financial statements,

Under the [FRS liabality method, a provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognition is measured based on the probability weighted average approach. There were no uncertain tax
positions recorded by the Company in either year presented.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the cumrent and
prior pericds are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities
using the tax rates thal have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current tax assels
and current tax liabilities are offsel, if a legally enforceable right exists to offsel the recognized amounts and
the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
The curmrent tax expense represents the cumrent tax obligation of the Company®s branch operation for the full
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assels and liabdlities in the financial atemenis and the corresponding tax basis used in
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the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences whereas deferred tax asseis are recognized to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable
profits will be available to utilize the assel.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be wilized. The unrecognized deferred tax asset is reassessed at each balance sheet date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Dreferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
assel is realized or the liability is senled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, ifa
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against cwrent tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable authority and the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend to settle curmrent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis. The deferred tax expense represents
movement in the overall deferred tax balances.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's financial statemenis are prepared in United States dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. For the foreign branch, exchange rate differences arsing from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recorded to unrealized foreign exchange loss on translation of
foreign operations, net in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (“ AGCL™ ),

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States dollars at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheel dates and all foreign denominated income and expense items are
translated at a monthly average of daily rates. Unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses on the
Company’s net investment in its foreign operations are presented separately as a component of AOCL,
Unrealized gains/{losses) will be recognized in Net investment income and other income on the Statements of
Loss and Comprehensive Loss when there has been a disposal of the investment in the foreign operations.

Foreign currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Member's Equity

Contributed swplus represents capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated
deficit represents the accumulated losses of the Company . AOCL represents the total of the unrealized foreign
exchange gaina{losses) on translation of foreign operations. On the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, this activity is classified by nature and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss and those that will not be reclassified. Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and
affiliates, net represents transactions between the Company and other subsidiaries of the Parent.

Leases
Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date on the Balance Sheets.

The right-of-use assel is initially measured based on the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incumed, as well as an

estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentive received, Lease modifications are treated as a new lease if the
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modifications represent a substantive change in scope or consideration paid. The asset is depreciated to the
earlier of the useful life of the rght-of-use asset or the lease term using the straight-line method and is
included within Other assets on the Balance Sheets. Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included
within Cther operating expenses on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the presend value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company shall use its incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental bomrowing rate as its discount rate and the rate is applied (o portfolios of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics. The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
and is included within Other liabilities on the Balance Sheets. Interest expense on lease liabilities is included
within Financing charges on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or revised accounting
standards, as follows:

Amendment/New Standard Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

IFES @ - Financial Instruments, 1AS | Effective January 1, 2021, the Company adopted the guidance of

39 - Financial Instruments: Interest Rate Benchmark Refonm —

Recognition and Measurement, and Phase 2 which issued amendments to IFES 9, IAS 39, and [FRS 16, The
IFRS 16 - Leases amendments provide relief from remeasurement impacts on financial

instruments and leases, and discontinuation of hedging relationships
arising from reform of interest rate benchimarks for replacement with
altemnative benchmark rates.

The adoption of these amendments had no significant impact on the
Compamy s financial statements,

Amendments to [AS 12 - Deferred Tax | On May 7, 2021, the IASB published Deferred Tax Related to Assets
related to Assets and Liabilities arising |and Liabilities from a Single Transaction, amendments to [AS 12,

from a Single Transaction Income Taxes. The amendments clarify that for transactions in which
both deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial
recognition which result in defemred tax assets and liabilities of the same
amoumt, deferred tax assets and liabilities are to be recognized,

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning January 1,
2023 and are applied retrospectively. The Cormpany is currently
evaluating the impact for the adoption of theze amendments,
Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of  |On February 12, 2021, the IASE published Definition of Accounting
Accounting Estimates Estimates, amendments to [IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, The amendments clarify the
difference between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate by
defining accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty™.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning Janoary 1,
2023 and are applied prospectively, The Company is currenthy
evaluating the impact for the adoption of these amendments,

Amendments to 1A% 1 and IFRS On February 12, 2021, the TASE published Disclosure of Accounting
Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of | Policies, amendments to TAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
Accounting Policies anil IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgzements, The

amendments change the requirement that an entity is to disclose its
“significant accounting policies™ by requiring that an entity is to
disclose its material accounting policy information. The amendments
clarify how an entity determines whether accounting policy information
is material.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning Janoary 1,
2023 and are applied prospectively, The Company is currenthy
evaluating the impact for the adoption of these amendments,
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3. Capital Assets, net
The carrying value of capital assets, and the changes in the camrying value of capital assets, are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Furniture and EDP Leasehold
fixtures Equipment Improvements Total
Carrying value, beginning of year §7.206 £110,951 $£388.203 5506, 450
Less: accumulated depreciation {1,478) (100.400% (388, 182) (490,060)
Met camving value, beginning of vear 5,818 10,551 i | 16,380
Depreciation (1,043) (3,247) = {4,290)
Accumulated depreciation retirements = - — —
Carrying vabue, end of year 7,206 110,951 388,203 506,450
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,521) (103,64 7) (388.180) (49,350
Met carrying value, end of vear 54,775 £7.304 o | 812,100
For the Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2020
Furniture and EDFP Leasehold
Mixtures Equipment Improvements Total
Camrying value, beginning of year £7.296 131,506 S388.203 527,005
Less: accumulated depreciation (435) (117, 708) (386,360) (504,303)
Met camrving value, beginning of vear &.861 13,798 1.843 22,502
Retirements — (20,555) — {20,555)
Depreciation (1.043) (3,24T) (1.822) (6,112)
Accumulated depreciation retirements - 20,555 — 20,555
Carrying value, end of vear 7.206 110,051 388,203 S06,450
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,478 (100, 400) (388,182 (4940, 060)
Net earrying value, end of year 55,518 $10,551 £21 516,390

4. Other Receivables
Other receivables consist of the following:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Insurance reimbursement — 811,867,221
Rent deposit 128 624 131,104
Other receivables a2 850 85,676
Total £221.474 £12.084,001

5 Other Assels
Other assets consist of the following:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Prepaid assets $265,580 $223.401

Right-of-use agsels 05419 604,871

Total 660,999 $828,272
16
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6. Other Liabilities
Ciher liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Lease liabilities 5444435 667,623
Cither liabilities 18,540 18808
Total £462,975 656,520

7. Income Taxes

{a) The Company has current tax liabilities related 1o its branch operation. Tax pavable for the branch is as

follows:

December 31, 2021  Decemnber 31, 2020
Current tax liability, beginning of year 51,036,107 5303732
Expenses during year 632619 1,012,472
Payments made on account (1,039.088) (288,109)
Other 449 8,012
Current tax lability, end of year 5630087 51,036,107

{b) The following table identifies the major components of Defemed tax assets at December 31, 2021 and
2020

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Performance compensation — S5148.364
Other 7,327 21,227
Deferred tax assets 57327 5169,591
{c) Income tax expense for the year is comprised of current and deferred taxes:
(i) Current tax
For the vear ended For the vear eticed
December 31, 2021 Decemnber 31, 2020
Current tax expense 632,619 $1.012.472
Total current tax 632,619 51012472
(i) Deferred tax
For the year ended For the vear ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Origination and reversal of temporary difference 5162264 (S155.817)
Total deferred tax expense 81622064 (5155817)
Total income tax expense 704,883 5856655

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits recorded in the vears ended December 31, 2021
and 2020. The Company’s policy is to include penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positicons in its
income tax provision. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not recogmze
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any interest and penalties in its income tax provision and does not have any accroed interest and penalties at
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Company's branch located in Singapore is taxed at the statulory rate of 17%% for both the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, with exemption and rebate allowed up to a nominal amount.

8. Leases
The Company leases buildings for office space and equipment used in the normal course of operations. These
leases have remaiming terms of between 1 and 2 years.

{a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use asset  Right-ofuse asset  Right-olFuse asset
December 31, 2021 FProperty Equipment Total
Met camying amount, beginning of the vear 5598024 26,847 S004,871
Additions — — —
Depreciation (204,303) (5,149) (205.452)
Met camving amoant, end of vear 5$393,721 $1,698 5395419

Right-ofl-use asset

Right-ol-use asset  Right-oFuse asset

December 31, 2020 Property Equipment Total

Met camving amount, beginning of the year 203,600 £11.841 £215.441
Additions 627,904 — 627,904
Depreciation (233,570) (4,99:9) (238,564)
Met camving armourt, end of v ear 508,024 56,847 604,871

Initial recognition of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, as well as subsequent additions and lease
modifications, represent non-cash activities and accordingly are not presented in the Statements of Cash
Flows. The right-of-use asset additions presented above approximate the impact on the lease liabilities.

The Company leases an office building in Singapore and equipment.
There were no leases with residual value guarantees or leases not yet commenced to which the Company is

commitied, and there were no costs relating 1o vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
for the years ended December 31, 2021 or 2020, The total cash ontflow for leases amounted 1o 239,826 and

£208,662 for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(h) Lease liabilities

Maturity Analysis

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

2022 $234,857 2021 $243,131
2023 233,017 2022 239,382
2024 = 2023 237,507
$467,874 £720,020
Less: Unearned interest (23,439  Less: Unearned interest (52,397)
5444 435 $667,623
18
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Analyzed as:
December 31, 24021 December 31, 2020
Currem 213,968 214,624
MNone-current 230,467 452,999
44,435 5667623

9. Related Party Transactions
The Company has significant interdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are described below.
The Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related parties and to disclose all
significant transactions involving related parties.

Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third-parties to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instructs the Parent to
disburse cash on the Company®s behalf The receivables or payables on the Balance Sheets represent amournts
for which the Parent has yet to pay or receive on the Company’s behalf. The Parent also allocates certain
expenses to the Company, Accounts (receivable from ) pavable to Parent and affiliates, net represents the net
of intercompany transactions between the Company, the Parent and affiliates due to (i) the above mentioned
receipt and payment of cash by the Parent on the Company's behalf (i) intercompany service fees and
allocation of expenses from'to other affiliated subsidianes of the Parent and (iii) subordinated debt, On March
31, 2010, Putnam Investments Canada ULC {*PIC ULC") executed a non-interest bearing subordination
agreement with the Company in the amount of $6,740,991, The repayment of this amount is subordinate to
the claims of the other creditors of PIC ULC. The loan has no maturity date, and repayment is not expected
within one vear.

These balances are recorded as corresponding increases or decreases in the Member's equity section of the
Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays or receives, nor anticipates paying or receiving cash related to
these balances. The gross changes in receivable and payable for the year related to these transactions are
disclosed separately on the Statements of Cash Flows as financing activities. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Company had a net intercompany (receivable fromp'payable balance of 34,727,110 and
5(1,051,845) respectively, which iz included in Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates,
net in the Balance Sheets,

Intercompany balances due to (from) affiliates as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Mon-interest bearing, unsecured (receivable from)/pavable to

e to Putnam Investment Management, LLC ("FIM") £21,498,340 £18.136,072
Dhee to(from) Putnam U.S. Heldings I ("PUSHI™) 3, 758949 (4221 434)
Duse tor Putisarn Retail Management LP ("PRM™) 3,305,072 1763192
e to Putnam Investrments Limited - UK ("FIL™) 2,321,500 3105429
Duse to Putnam Investor Services, Inc. ("PSERY") 237,813 196,421
Due to Putnam Investrments Japan Co., Ltd, ("F1IC0") 226,499 200,458
e to Putnam Investments Awstralia Pty Ltd, ("FIA") 162,475 33549
e from Putnam Investments (Ireland) Limited (*FITL"™) (235,700) (631,845)
Due from PIC ULC (12,612,375) (9,181,330)
Due from Putnam Fiduciary Trust Company. LLC ("FFTC™ (13,93545T) (11,314,209

Total accounts {recevable from)/payable from Parent and afMiliates, net 84,727,110 (51,051,845)
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Revenue and Expenses earned from/paid to Affiliates
A portion of the Investment advisory fees, net included in revenue on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss is attributed to sub-advised institutional clients and an affiliaste who are related parties.

The total reverme and ending AUM for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Forthe Wear Ended  For the Year Ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

“Related Party Revenue $10,989,330 510,265,071
Related Party AUM $4,446,620,960 $4,593,415,714

The receivables associated with the revenue received from these related panties are $1.332,985 and $303,260
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in Accrued investment management fees
receivable, net on the Balance Sheets,

In addition to the sub-advisory fee income disclosed above, the Company receives revenue for investment
advisory services it provides to certain affiliated funds. OF the Investment adwvisory fees, net on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, approximately 8 1% and $2% was eamed from these affiliates
respectively, for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

The Company also incwmed expenses from certain affiliates For sub-advisory services that the affiliates
provide for cemain instittional portfolios through an agreement which ended in 2020, There were no
expenses paid to affiliates for the vear ended December 31, 2021, and the total for the vear ended December
31, 2020 was $40.367, and was included in Other operating expenses on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss.

Transfer Pricing Programs

The Company has multiple transfer pricing amangements, the first group being with certain affiliates in which
the Company receives the contractual third-party revenue and also incurs the contractual third party expenses
as compensation for the investment advisory services it performs for the affiliates. These agreements are
summanzed below,

Effective Janmary 1, 2021, a transfer pricing agreement was amended between the Company and PIC ULC to
compensate the Company for investment advice and securities trading services it provides o PIC ULC. The
terms of the transfer pricing agreement allow for PIC ULC to receive a return on its gross revenue to account
for its fiduciary risk. and for PAC to receive the contraciual fees and expenses as it performs all remaining
functions and bears all remaining rsk. The Company maintaing a similar agreement with PFTC. The
Company also has a transfer pricing agreement with PIIL in which the Company performs all investment
management services on behalf of this affiliate. The Company collects the contraciual revenue and assumes
the contractual expenses on behalf of the affiliate, and in exchange pays a service fee expense based on the
affiliate’s AUM.

The total impact of the asswmption of the contractual revenue and expenses by the Company as a result of
these transfer pricing agreements on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (excluding service fee
expense, which is disclosed separately in the subsequent service fee paragraphs) is summarized by financial
statement line item.

210/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contractual revenue and associated expenses (PFTC, PIC ULC, and PITL)

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2021

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020

Revenue
Inwestment adviscry fees, net

Total revenue

Operating expenses
Professional and external services
Dealer comumissions
Oither operaling expenses

Total operating cxpenses

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

00,073,360 377,665,437
9,073,360 77665437
3885538 2,696,962
13438748 13,463,112
46,422 80,302
17.370,708 16,240,376
£72,702,652 261,425,061

Senvice Fee Revemee received from Affiliate

Additionally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company received
52,926,384 and $1,360,165 of revenue for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
pursuant to a transfer pricing agreement with an affiliate, This revenue is included in Service fee revenue in

the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Service Fee Expense paid 1o Affilicies

Finally, as described in the Swmmary of Significant Accounting Pelicies, the Company incumed
S£118,565,068 and 393,537,009 of service fee expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, pursuant to transfer pricing agreements with certain of its foreign and domestic affiliates. This
expense isincluded in Service fee expense in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and is outlined

below by affiliate;
YWear Ended Year Ended

Affiliate Transfer pricing Methodology December 31, 2021 Decembrer 31, 2020
PIM Various® 888,230,747 B67,745, 266
FIL Cost Plus 1{(P% 12453,758 13,186,906
PEM Cost Plus 5% 10,398,272 -_—
PLICO Cost Plus 5%6 (2021094 (2020) 2 522 206 4,001 947
PIL G bps on average AUM 1,764,998 2,339,858
PFTC 2.28% of gross revenue 1,535,155 1,304,802
PIC ULC i:ﬁ‘a{gﬂ%ﬁﬂ revenue (20210 9 bps on ending 379,560 4,064,517
PlA Cost Plus 5% (20210102 (2020) 880,372 B93,803
Total service fee expense paid to alliliates Z118,565,068 S93.537,009

*Bhps on fited incorne AUM, 315 bps an equibies AUM and 20.25 bps on global asset allocation ATM
1 H'v-.".".u.lsl:,' rec\q-gm:.-ed a5 allocated Expense, récopded a5 paot of trans fer pocng b-:glr:r.:rxg m 2021

Intercompany Settlement

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company received 529,701,233 as a non-cash contribution-in-
kind from the Parent as a result of a group-wide exercise cammied out by the Parent to reassign and settle
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historical intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates, The Company's Contributed surplus and
Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net were reduced as a result of this transaction.

During the vear ended December 31, 2020, the Company distributed $741,100 as a non-cash dividend-in-kind
to the Parent and received $58.457.597 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of a
group-wide exercizse carfied out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical intercompany balances between
Putnam affiliates. The Company’s Contributed surplus and Accounts (receivable from)'payable to Parent and
affiliates, net were reduced as a result of these transactions.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and affiliates of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution
retirement plan {the “Flan") covering substantially all employees. Under this Plan, employees may defer a
percentage of eligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a portion of which is matched
by the Company. The Company also provides for an anmual discretionary contribution as determined by the
Parent’s Board of Directors. For the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s share of the
annual expense (o the Plan totaled $366.989 and $326,256, respectively. These amounts are included in
Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal nse as long-lived assets. The
amortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH [, based on the subsidiary’s usage
of each capitalized software project. These costs were amontized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of five
years or the estimated useful life. Overall amonization expense allocated to the Company dunng the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $1,766,696 and 31375346, respectivelyand is included in
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Dealer Commissions
The Company paid to a broker/dealer. affiliated with the Parent, distribution costs for the sales of certain

share classes of the Company Funds pursuant to the contractual agreement. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Company paid the affiliated broker/dealer 2,382,833 and $2,400,863. This charge is
included in Dealer commissions in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Pulnam Investments, LLC EIP. Certain employees of the Company are eligible to
participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricied shares of the Pareni’s Class B
common shares and Class B stock options,

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on
the grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses is allocated to the Company in a manner
consistent with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIP as equity awards in accordance with the IFRS 2
guidance related to share-based payment transactions among group entities, The Company receives the
services of the employees granted the share awards but has no obligation to seitle the share awards. That
obligation belongs to the Parent.

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant 1o
the EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair

market value of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income wvaluation
approaches as outlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the range of values determined by a
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nationally recognized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for
these awards is being amoized over the vesting period of up to five vears. Compensation expense directly
charged to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 52,592,294 and 51,337,653,
respectively, and iz included in Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss. Compensation expense allocated 1o the Company for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was
682,675 and $506,658 respectively, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. As of December 31, 2021, there was 38,705,101 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company®s portion of restricted Class B common shares.
The weighted average period over which that expense is expected 1o be recognized is 3.39 vears. During the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company repurchased restricted Class B common shares with
a cash settlement of zero and $334,351,

Restricted Class B Shares

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Welghted Average Welghted Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shar es Falir Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested balanee at January 1 470,806 13.79 323304 £16.07
Granted 105,164 16,54 199,180 11.50
WVested (216,201) 14.42 (54,1000 18,90
Transferred -- — 11,848 1502
Forfeited (21,684) 13,32 (9.426) 1592
Unvested balance at December 51 338175 §$14.27 470,896 $13.7%

Kev Management Compensation

Key management of the Company includes certain executives of the Parent that have the anthority and
responsibility for planming, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, The individuals that
comprise the key management personnel are the Board of Directors, as well as cerntain key management and
officers. A portion of the compensation earmed by these individuals is allocated to the Company on the same
basis as the other expense allocations from the Parent and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and
affiliates, net on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2021

Salary S428.008 16,543
Share-based compensation 757,396 601,773
Annual non-share-based incentive compensation 2368616 2277464
All other compensation 112,643 33,687
Total compensation 53,667,663 £3,334.467

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilities, personnel and other arrangements further described in this note with
other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangements have been allocated by
the Parent and by affiliates among the varous subsidiaries in a mamner which management believes is
representative of the actual costs incurred. This includes the costs associated with capitalized software and
key management compensation as disclosed above. Additionally, in the course of the Company's day-to-day
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10.

business operations cerain personnel from other subsidiaries of the Parent are utilized to suppornt the
Company, the related costs of which have been allocated to the Company, in a manner which management
believes is representative of actual costs incwrred. The Company also allocates certain of its own cosls among
various affiliates in a manner which management believes is representative of the actual costs incurred.

Durning the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company was allocated 526,834,562 and
£31.681,486 of costs, respectively, as outlined below. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from
Parent and affiliates, net in the Stalements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.
Forthe Year Ended  For the Year Ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

General & Administrative Expense from PUSH 1 £24,234 802 £20,668, 138
Global Investment Strategies Expense from PRM 1,975,014 1,703,939
Defined Contribution Operations Expense from PRSERV B6T 034 764,951
Marketing Expense from PRM' . 3,284 563
Defined Contribution Investment Only ("DCIOM) Expense from PRM' — 5,745,325
Inetitutional Expense to PRM (243,188) (485,430)
Total Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net 526,834,562 531,651,456

T Marketing expense from PRM and DCIO expenss from PRM were moved lo o new transler pricing agreement in 2021,

Other Operating Ex penses

Other operating expenses consist of the following:
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020

Facility mantenance & ulilities 5414148 457,671
Industry dues & filing fees 235,307 356,776
Lease deprecialion expense - property 204,303 233,711
Travel & Entertainment O2 697 197,077
Expenses paid to affiliates — 40,367
Depreciation of capital assets 4,200 6112
Leaze depreciation expense - equipment 5149 4,598
Miscellancous other operating expenses 403 680 280,103
Total other operating expenses 51,449,574 £1.576.815

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Unrealized Foreign Exchange Loss on Translation
of Forelgn Operations, net

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Balance, beginning of year (57, 4406,988) (37,4 2,108)
Other comprehensive (loss), net (202,142) (4, 8807
Balance, end of year (57,642,130 (57,446, 988)
24
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12. Commitments and Contingend es
Clafms, Levesitits, Provisions and COrher Contingencfes
From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal
course of business. 1t is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Company receives inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in the course
of its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these maiters is handled in the ordinary course of business, The Company fully responds
to these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inquiries, and there are no such matters pending that
the Compamny believes could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial
position,

Other Litigation

The Company was a defendant in an action that alleged the Company violated state law by allowing another
entity to pick poor performing assets (underlying collateral ) for a Collateral Debt Obligation ("CDO"). Claims
against the Company were for fraud, negligent misrepreseniation, and negligence. On Aungust 27, 2020 the
Court issued an opinion finding for Putnam on all counts. A judgment was entered September 10, 2020 and
the litigant did not file an appeal. This legal matter is now closed afler the litigant reimbursed the Company
for cemtain costs,

13. Capital Management
The Parent monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts deployed in ils various
operating subsidiaries, including the Company. The amount of capital deploved in any paricolar company or
couniry is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parent’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational risks and requirements and strategic plans. The Parent’s practice
1= to maintain the Company s capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory capital
requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate.

The Company must maintain minimum member’s equity of $1,000,000 in certain jurisdictions subject to mles
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA™). During the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively, the Company was in compliance with all minimum capital requiremenis,

14. Risk Management
The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring. mitigating and controlling
of risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk {cumency, interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the
Company manages each of these nisks.

Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring
the capital plan. The Board of Directors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital transactions
undertaken by management.

(@) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the nisk for financial loss resulting from the failwe of debtors making payments when due.
The Company regularly reviews its credit exposure from each counterparty. The Company monitors its
credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. These policies include, but
are not limited to, dealing only with creditworthy counterparties, and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaulls. The maximum credit
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exposire is the camrying value of the assets on the Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses. There
are no allowances for years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(b) Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they
come due. The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:

*  The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities.,

*  The Company has the financial suppont of its Parent, which maintains a $300,.000,000 revolving credit
agrecment with a consortium of banks,

*  The Company does not have a sigmificant amount of financial assets that are pad due at December 31,
2021,

*  The Company anticipates that its financial liabdlities will mature within the next fiscal year.

In the nommal course of business, the Company énters inlo contracts that give nse o commutments of
future minimum payments that impact short-term and long-term Lquidity.

Payvments due by vear as of December 31, 2021

Total 2022 2023 2024 20025 2026 Thereafter

Leases £467,874 5234857 5233017 — 5— — 5—

Pavments due by vear as of Decemnber 31, 2020

Total 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Thereafter

Leases 2849711 5286 580 282 569 $280,562 — i— &—

(ch Market Risk
Market nisk is the nisk that the fair value of fiuture cash flows of a financial instrument will flucinate as a
result of changes in market factors. Market factors include three types of risks: cumrency nisk, interest rate
risk, and equity risk.

(1} Currency Risk
Currency risk relates to the Company operating in different currencies and converting non UL S, dollar
earmings al different points in time at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in foreign
currency exchange rates occur. The Company’s financial instruments are generally denominated in
L5, dollars and do not have significant exposure (o changes in foreign exchange rates,

(1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exisis if assel and liability cash flows are not closely maiched, and inierest rates
change cansing a difference in value between the asset and liabality. The Company, through instruction
from the Parent, monitors interest rate nisk by regulardy assessing this risk and establishing policies and
practices to protect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures. The Company’s primary
exposures to inferest rale nsk arise from fee revenue eamed by the Company that is dependent on the
debt portfolios of Puinam sponsored funds. A one percent increase or decrease in the yield of these
funds wonld have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately 3925000 and 8833000 for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(iii) Equity Risk
Equity risk is the uncentainty associated with the valuation of assets ansing from changes in equity
markets. The Company through instruction from the Parent has investment policy guidelines in place

26
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that provide for prudent investment in equity markets with cleady defined limits to mitigate price risk,
The Company’s primary exposure to equity risk arises from fee revenue earmed by the Company that is
dependent on the equity portfolios of PIM sponsored fimds and PAC institutional clients. A ten percent
increase or decrease in equity markets would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately
£5.776,000 and $3,940,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

15. Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent evends and transactions occurring afier December 31, 2021 through May
26, 2022, the date these financial statements were authorized for issue. The Company is not aware of any
subsequent events which would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

27
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State Street Bank and Trust Campany

2022 226.6 1,414
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2022 17,710

Putnam International Distributors,Ltd.

2022 86,621,537 120 834
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30, 2022
and 2021, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (1oss), of changes in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred
to asthe "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Fund as of April 30, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsihilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Fund' s ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Manager's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the other
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 11, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Officers of
The Puthnam Advisory Company, LLC:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Putham Advisory Company, LLC (the "Company"), which comprise
the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of loss and comprehensive |oss,
changes in member’'s equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements

(collectively referred to asthe "financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, and 9, the Company has significant transactions with its Parent and its affiliates. These
financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had the

Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by areasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financia statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

May 26, 2022
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